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MESSAGE FROM THE MAYOR ABB MCALISTER

Please find the Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council 2016-2017 Annual Report.

This report has been developed for our community, to share our improvements over the past financial year
as we continue to develop the new Council.

For Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council, the 2016-17 year was spent dealing with the amalgamation
of the former Cootamundra and Gundagai Shire Councils that occurred on 12 May 2016.

During this first year, facing challenges and opposition, the Council put in a remarkable effort to adapt to
the many changes that were happening, while ensuring that residents continue to receive the high level of
service they have come to expect.

Council delivers a raft of essential services without which our community could not function. Basic amenities
like roads, footpaths, sewerage and waste collection, and lifestyle amenities like parks and gardens, libraries
and swimming pools, and all of the administrative work to ensure that all of the operations of council are
funded. There was no reduction in service as a result of the merger, and this is a tribute to the staff that put
their hearts and souls in to their work.

The Annual Report is our way of being completely transparent and accountable to our community ensuring
that we achieve the goals that we have set out to achieve in our Strategic Plans.

Thank you to all our staff for the day to day work they undertake and cooperation they extend to one
another to successfully get the job done.

Let us look to the next twelve months to work together to develop our towns and villages into thriving,
economic communities.

Abb McAlister
Mayor
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MESSAGE FROM THE GENERAL MANAGER — ALLEN DWYER

Being appointed only five short months ago | proudly bring 40 years’ experience to Cootamundra-Gundagai
Regional Council. | am committed to developing a dedicated team working together to maintain a stable
and economically viable community for the region.

This Annual Report has been prepared to share our progress with the community to ensure that we
accurately communicate our achievements over the previous twelve months.

| am consistently proud of the advancement we are making as a newly formed Council and am encouraged
by the positive community feedback Council is receiving on our advancement.

This report contains some of the major achievements we have accomplished as a newly merged, larger
organisation. From the distribution of $1 million Stronger Community Grants program and comprehensive
community consultation projects to major road upgrades, bridge construction and facility upgrades. It has
been a productive year for Council and we intend to continue this good work into the future.

With our newly elected Council now in place Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council is dedicated to
ensuring our Council is energetic, sustainable and serves the community to the highest possible level.

Allen Dwyer
General Manager
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VISION STATEMENT — COOTAMUNDRA-GUNDAGAI REGIONAL COUNCIL

ABOUT COUNCIL

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council was formed on 12 May 2016 from the two council areas of
Cootamundra and Gundagai Shires. The council area now encompasses 3,981 square kilometres of the South
West Slopes and Riverina regions of New South Wales.

At the time of establishment, the population covered by the new council was estimated at 11,504, including
citizens of both Cootamundra and Gundagai, as well as the surrounding smaller villages of Brawlin, Nangus,
Tumblong, Coolac, Frampton, Muttama, Stockinbingal and Wallendbeen. These are primarily farming
communities producing wheat, canola, cereal crops, sheep, wool, fat lambs and cattle.

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council is a part of Wiradjuri Country, covering the western side of the
Great Dividing Range between Yass and Tumut and the beginning of the northern part of the Riverina plains.
Gundagai is located along the Murrumbidgee River, 390km south-west of Sydney and 95km from Canberra,
and Cootamundra lies centrally between

Sydney, Melbourne and Adelaide. PRI

The region thrives on rural industries, Mitvale Young

particularly cereal crops, beef and lamb. In
Gundagai, honey production and viticulture
are developing industries, while cattle and Springdal
sheep  production is expanding in
Cootamundra. Outside of agriculture, a meat
processing plant, Gundagai Meat Processors, Coatamundra
and well established engineering firm are o
major industries of the region, as well as retail
trade, food and accommodation,
manufacturing, health and social care.

Booroy

Stockinbingal

Bethungra
[ Ad1 ]

Jugiong

Coo!«w".r‘
Other benefits include:
e $1 million to invest in community Dhpinijuck
projects like junior sporting facilities,
playgrounds and library or pool
upgrades.

e S9 million for major infrastructure
improvements like water and sewer
infrastructure upgrades, major > Adelong.  Tumut Cleve
playground development, stormwater
and footpath extensions.

Wee Jaspe

Gocup

e S5 million to streamline
administration and establish the new
Council.

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17 Page 6 of 42



ADMINISTRATOR STEPHEN SYKES BSoc.Sc (UNE) MBA Government (CSU)

L.M. (PNG) —
April 2017 — October 2017

The Local Government (Council Amalgamations) Proclamation 2016 amalgamated 39 local government
areas and created 17 new local government areas. The councils of the amalgamated areas were dissolved,
and administrators appointed to exercise the functions of the 17 new councils

Stephen Sykes was appointed Administrator to the merged Cootamundra —
Gundagai Regional Council, by the NSW Minister for Local Government until
September 2017.

"I’ve heard it said that leadership is about being able to see what’s over the
horizon and prepare to get there. For CGRC | hope that | have been able to work
with the team to allow them to have the tools to make that journey.

The new Council has to deliver over $35 mil in capital projects in 2 years. To
achieve this, it has to be very focused on making that happen for the long term
benefit of their community. After all, it’s all about the community and future
generations. The projects that are locked in will deliver enhanced amenity for
the community helping to attract skills and visitors and build a future.
Stephen Sykes

ADMINISTRATOR- CHRISTINE FERGUSON
May 2016 — April 2017

Christine Ferguson was appointed Administrator by the Minister for Local Government upon proclamation
of the new Council on 12 May 2016.

I have been proud to lead Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council during the early, and most difficult
phase of this significant reform to local government.

Much of the hard work to date has been behind the scenes and has been aimed
at bringing the two previous workplaces together into a new single entity to
make it possible to realise the benefits that will be seen in the coming months
and years. However, there are been benefits already delivered such as,
$500,000 for Gundagai community groups and $600,000 for Cootamundra
community groups to undertake much needed local projects.

All of us, living in this wonderful region, will see the great benefits of this
merger unfold in the future. | wish the new Administrator and the committed
team at Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council every success, and | trust
the community will positively embrace this new momentum.
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COUNCIL ADVISORY COMMITTEES (IAG & LRC)

IMPLEMENTATION ACTION GROUP (IAG)
The Implementation Advisory Committee was established during the period of Administration to assist and

advise the Administrator to implement the new Council

Carla Barton Paul Braybrooks OAM Doug Phillips Rod Chalmers David Graham
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LOCAL REPRESENTATION COMMITTEE (LRC)
A Local Representation Committee was established to provide advice to the Administrator on local views
and issues.

Peter Batey OAM Michael Kingwill Stephen Doidge Mary Donnelly

Dennis Palmer Penny Nicholson Tim Ryan Craig Stewart
Ron Magnone Jim Slattery Rosalind Wight Mike Kingwill
12 May 2016 — 30 June
2016

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17 Page 9 of 42



STRONGER COMMUNITIES FUND

COMMUNIITY GRANTS PROGRAM

The Stronger Communities Fund was established by the NSW State Government to provide councils with
funding to kick start the delivery of projects that improve community infrastructure and services.

46 not-for-profit community groups throughout the Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council have reaped
the rewards of more than $1 million in funding through the Stronger Community Grants program. The
Stronger Communities Fund was established by the NSW Government to provide councils with funding to
kick start the delivery of projects that improve community infrastructure and services.

Successful recipients were as follow.

Elouera Association Inc. The Revolve Store - Cootamundra $50,000.00
Cootamundra Creative Arts Inc - The Arts Centre (TAC) Summer Heat - Cool Event $33,830.00
Cootamundra Strikers Soccer Club Inc. (S)hiﬁcre]:or Park Awning & Spectator/Player $27,348.00
Lions Club of Gundagai Incorporated Weather Shelter, Yarri Park $14,630.00
Uralba Hostel CCTV Installation $8,000.00
Gundagai Pre-School Kindergarten Soft Landing with Softfall $15,000.00
Cootamundra Pony Club Inc Undercover Shade Shelter $35,114.00
Cootamundra Junior Rugby League Inc U.pgr.ade. of food handling, preparation and $32,000.00
distribution areas
Development of existing site for Mountain
Cootamundra Cycle Club Bike and Walking track $50,000.00
Cootamundra Scouts Scout Hall Building Maintenance $42,175.00
Anglican Parish of Gundagai Ramp Access to St Johns $18,600.00
Nangus Recreation Reserve and Public Hall Equal Access for Everyone at Nangus $36,527.00
Gundagai Neighbourhood Centre - Gundagai Youth Council | Gundagai Youth Recreation Space Reno $50,000.00
f faciliti -
Cootamundra Swimming & Lifesaving Club Incorporated Upgrade of facilities and equipment at $50,000.00
Cootamundra Town Pool
Tumblong War Memorial Hall and Citizens Association Tumblong Hall Kitchen Upgrade $15,321.00
Cootamundra Netball Association Relocation of Netball Grass Courts including $4,880.00
the purchase of new removable posts
Gundagai Historic Bridges Committee Inc. New toilet block with disabled access $35,000.00
Gundagai Amateur Swimming Lifesaving Club Inc Gundagai Pool Playground Fence and Softfall | $20,000.00
Gundagai Historic Bridges Committee Inc. Public Safety Fencing $18,000.00
Cootamundra Turf Club Grandstanding Upgrade/Preservation | «c 506 0
Project
Cootamundra Men's Shed Inc. Upgrading of ~Equipment and Concrete $10,000.00
Workshop floor
L - - -
Rotary Club of Cootamundra Inc. Pz:fscaplng the Peace Pavilion Area - Albert $5,713.00
Cootamundra Rugby League Football Club Upgrade of Grandstand seating and Canteen $10,500.00
servery areas
Cootamundra Pre-School Refurbishment of Student Bathroom $12,000.00
Stockinbingal Cricket Club Upgrade to Clubhouse $28,000.00
Cootamundra All-Breeds Kennel Club Inc. Removable Posts for Dog Show Rings $2,400.00
Cootamundra Rodeo Ass. Inc Prune large dangerous Gum trees $3,300.00
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Cootamundra Junior Cricket

Training and Playing Facility upgrade

$9,661.00

Riding for the Disabled (NSW) Cootamundra Horse rugs $1,450.00
Riding for the Disabled (NSW) Cootamundra RDA Centre refurbishment $27,451.00
Cootamundra Lions Club Co.otamundra L|on§ Club-Replacement - of $50,000.00
aging plant and equipment
1st Gundagai Scout Group Gundagai Scout Hall Community Kitchen $49,251.00
Gundagai Amateur Swimming Lifesaving Club Inc. Equipped for the Future $14,583.00
Gundagai Rodeo Club Inc. Campdraft arena complex $25,000.00
Gundagai Ladies Golf Club Revitalisation of "Bidgee Banks"Golf course | $42,000.00
. , Revitalisation of "Bidgee Banks"Golf course -
Gundagai Men's Golf Club Dakota 414 Turf Tender $30,350.00
Constructing the Missing Link of the
I
Cootamundra Garden Club Muttama Creek Shared Pathway $45,045.00
. Cootamundra Beach Volleyball Equipment
Cootamundra Beach Volleyball Committee and Shed $6,000.00
. . Stockinbingal Bowling Club Facility
Stockinbingal Bowling Club Co-Op Ltd Improvements $8,000.00
Coolac Recreation Reserve and Public Hall Trust Replacement of Collapsed Bore and Pump $23,450.00
Gundagai Racecourse and Showground Trust Replacing underground water mains $17,511.00
. The Muttama Hall Rejuvenation Project
T L
he Wired Lab Stronger Communities Project #1 $21,809.00
The Muttama Hall Rejuvenation Project
Wired Lab Stronger Communities Project #2 Kitchen
Supper room $21,550.00
Wallendbeen Combined Church Guild Revitalisation of the Wallendbeen Markets $5,200.00
Bongongo Public School Parents and Citizens Adjungbilly Community Hall Upgrade $29,637.00
Cootamundra Development Corporation Completion of Cootamundra Town Clock $2,905.00

Approved applications total $1,108,891 for the communities across the local government area.
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IMPLEMENTATION ACTIVITIES

Progress on the actions and targets for the implementation of one, new Council, was the main focus of
Council activity of the course of the year. In addition to progressing all the actions that had been planned by
the former councils, all necessary administrative activities were undertaken to enable the newly created
Council to begin operating as one entity. All staff contributed to the first stage of a comprehensive review
of our service outputs, and our processes, with a view to work together to create a highly efficient team.

Service Provision

Library service level review and decision to open the Gundagai library for an additional day each
week.

Waste Strategy review and report to Council about future options, information sessions and
workshops held in villages to discuss service levels and cost. The information is ready for the final
determination on service type and level of service to be made by the new Council.

New Visitor Centre opened at the Cootamundra Heritage Centre.

Community recycling centres opened in Cootamundra and Gundagai.

Implemented resource sharing arrangements between the libraries.

Developed single food business register, completed food business inspections and launched Scores
on Doors program.

Capital Project Delivery

Replaced the Carberry Monumental Gates in Carberry Park.

Progressed design work for the Gundagai Sewerage Treatment Plant, and submission of funding
application, requesting $3.5 million through the Federal Building Better Regions Fund. This
application was successful, along with another $10 million from the State Government.
Commencement of Integrated Water Cycle Management Strategy with NSW Public Works.
Aerodrome reseal completed to improve service standard.

Gundagai Main Street Redevelopment works continued throughout the year.

Completion and opening of the Yari and Jackie sculpture.

Back Station Creek Road Bridge Repair.

Resealed Back Brawlin Road.

Reconstructed and widened and sealed 1.5km of Netherleigh Lane.

Reconstructed and widened Gundagai Road / Cowcumbla Street intersection for improved heavy
vehicle access.

Additional maintenance works in the villages.

Works crews worked together to complete extensive flood and storm damage repairs on local
roads.

Additional $2.1 million heavy patching to repair flood damaged RMS State Roads.

Large culvert installation at Old Cootamundra Road causeway to fix severe dip.

1.4km road and culvert reconstruction along Gobarralong Rd to intersection with Hume Hwy.
Road stabilisation and resealing was completed for Stage One reconstruction of Temora Street,
Cootamundra.

The former Gobarralong Bridge was removed once construction of the new bridge was completed.
Nangus Road shoulder widening completed.

Rehabilitation of 1km section of Muttama Road completed.

Bourke Street Toilet block construction.

Installation of new cricket wicket base at Bradman Oval.

Cootamundra Cemetery irrigation extension.

Replacement of water mains for two blocks at Temora Street, Cootamundra.

Constructed a new gym in Gundagai and installed thermal blankets and solar heating at the
Gundagai Pool.
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Completed 6km of sewer main assessment involving camera work, and 4km of sewer relining in
Cootamundra.

Construction of new Community Recycling Centre shed as part of a REROC region waste grant. The
shed is for the deposit of household problem waste and was funded by EPA’s Waste Less Recycle
More initiative.
Tiling of the toddler’s pool at the Cootamundra to enhance the aesthetics to make the pool easier
to clean and reduce maintenance costs.

$1.1 million Strong Regions Funds allocated and distributed to 44 organisations.

Human Resource Management

Staff training and development workshops and sessions throughout the year, including work health
safety, change management and organisational culture, and communications workshops.

New organisational structure adopted and all interim positions in place, and a substantial
proportion of permanent positions filled.

Review of all positions descriptions within the organisation substantially complete.

Internal and external recruitment to fill vacant positions occurred throughout the year.

New consultative committee established and all members trained.

Commenced consultation with all staff to develop a new salary system.

Regular staff communication including fortnightly distribution of staff FAQs, monthly staff
consultative committee, and two combined indoor and outdoor staff meetings to discuss
amalgamation issues and progress.

HR policies and procedures developed and discussed with all staff through consultative committee
process. Especially to deal with fair and consistent transfer of staff to new positions within the
organisational structure.

Employed new position for HR People and Culture Officer, who commenced supervisor and
leadership mentoring program with individual staff.

Employee Assistance Program provided for all staff, providing support to all staff and their families,
in particular with dealing with personal stress and challenging situations.

Leadership and management training for Supervisors, Managers and Directors.

Development of new staff intranet, providing a platform for work collaboration and information
sharing, including staff notices and discussions.

Allindoor and outdoor staff involved in workshop discussions for the development of the Council’s
Community Strategic Plan.

Staff workshops to develop a new Customer Service Charter. All staff, both indoor and outdoor,
are customer service officers, and many involved themselves in this process, all expressing a desire
to set a standard to be proud of. The Charter has been approved by management, and systems are
now being reviewed to support its achievement.

All staff thanked for their work in setting up the newly created Council, and appreciation expressed
for the challenges they have faced and the additional hours worked by many. Thank you gifts
distributed as part of rollout of new brand. Packs included new HiVis uniforms for outdoor staff.
Polo shirts, hats, pens and drink bottles.

Finance and Administration

Completed all administration processes associated with changing Council’s name (twice.) This
included ABN / letterhead, bank names, forms, Corporate Software system, and setup of new
domain name and email accounts.

Completed the financial statements of the two former Councils within the required timeframes.
Implemented new budgeting system and combined both previous budgets into one new financial
structure.

Operational budget adopted, and budget reviews completed each quarter. Detailed information
posted on website to ensure transparency throughout this process.

Accounting policies reviewed and consolidated in readiness for end of year reporting to be
completed.
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. Aligned the office hours in both places for consistent customer service.

. Rating categorisation developed and implementation progressed in readiness for the State
Government’s new Emergency Services Levy that was to be administered by Council’s.
Unfortunately this work was discarded as the State Government’s policy changed after completion.

. Email delivery of rates notices established.

. New customer service desk, reception area and security systems in the Gundagai office. Presents
a more professional image and provides separation for the office working area.

. Implemented electronic water meter reading in Cootamundra.

. Electronic records management and customer request system implemented across the
organisation.

. Connected optic fibre to both offices for high speed internet, and establishment of local area
network between offices and depots.

o Commenced system planning and project plan for implementation of one integrated corporate

software system. New consolidated system set up as a blank template, and audit of all system data
commenced to ensure data integrity prior to consolidation in one new system.

o Consolidation of all IT servers, including all software and programs, on to one new server located
in Cootamundra, with a backup server in Sydney. Security and backup programs established. All
computers, printers and hardware reconnected, and staff education on new domain and user
profiles completed.

o Implemented “Office Status” system for new Council, so that all staff can notify each other of their
daily availability, for better communication and processes and better customer service.

o Asset Management Planning

o Condition assessment and revaluation of road assets, and all data collection completed in readiness
for establishing one new asset register and asset management system.

o Revaluation of all water and sewer assets, and all data collection completed, ready for
implementation of new asset management system.

. Plant replacement programs reviewed and combined in to one, more efficient program.

. Corporate Planning and Community Consultation

. Extensive staff and community engagement to design and implement a new brand that will
represent the new Council. Engagement activities included school and community workshops and
surveys.

. Electronic noticeboards established in both offices.

. Released frequent media releases, weekly administrator columns, radio and TV interviews
throughout the period to keep the community informed of progress throughout the year.

. Established new website and social media so that Council information is accessible.

. Community meetings in each of the villages, and extensive community engagement that has been
used to develop a strategies for each of the villages and their surrounding rural communities.

. 12 Community Strategic Planning Listening workshops conducted in Cootamundra and Gundagai,

in which 109 people participated. This information about community priorities will be used to
inform the new Council’s development of the Community Strategic Plan.

. Attended numerous community events and meetings to provide information on Council projects
and initiatives.

o Volunteer appreciation day to thank the many volunteers who work with Council to delivery
services and benefits to the community.

. Established a digital community panel that will enable Council to canvas its ideas and gather
feedback on options to assist with decision making.

. Established webcasting of Council meetings to increase accessibility and transparency of meeting
outcomes and decision making processes.

. Developed a Disability Inclusion Action Plan.

. Economic Development consultation completed and strategy developed.

. Development and distribution of new Council newsletter to all residents, with the first newsletter

releasing the Council brand.
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KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

NEW VISITORS INFORMATION CENTRE FOR COOTAMUNDRA

The new Cootamundra Visitor Information Centre doors were officially opened by the Hon. Michael
McCormick MP on Monday 14th November 2016 The Cootamundra Heritage Centre was temporarily closed
to allow for the kitchen area to be transformed into the new Visitors Information Centre. Builders,
Electricians, Painters and Plumbers have worked tirelessly to create a fresh, well-equipped space for the
new centre. The new location means taking information services to where the visitors are already going with
the Heritage Centre welcoming hundreds of visitors through its doors annually. The new centre will provide
visitor information on attractions, accommodation and maps on Cootamundra, Gundagai and the region as
a whole. The Centre is overseen by the Council and manned by the team of dedicated volunteers at the
Cootamundra Heritage Centre.
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NEW CGRC BRANDING

Over a number of weeks Council engaged with the Community to develop and design a new logo and
branding for the newly amalgamated Council.

COOTAMUNDRA-GUNDAGAI REGIONAL COUNCIL EXTENDS A WARM THANK YOU TO ALL COMMUNITY MEMBERS WHO
HAVE PARTICIPATED IN OUR NEW COUNCIL BRANDING PROCESS BY GIVING INSPIRING SUGGESTIONS AND IDEAS.

The community highlighted our country living, agricultural landscape and friendly communities
as major elements of our thriving rural region.

The eye-catching new corporate brand, which will be progressively rolled out over the next few months,
is modern and distinctive and identifiable.

Over 600 people answered surveys,

and over 200 people came along to ot 0 oot
meetings and attended logo design plowet
workshops - including staff, residents it \

and school groups.

173 people provided
valuable feedback on all
logo concepts presented.

From this extensive consultation,
one logo began to emerge as the most suitable.
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YOUR RESPONSES HIGHLIGHTED THE COMMUNITY
ATTRIBUTES WE COLLECTIVELY VALUE:

Country Lifestyle
Rural/Agriculture

Community Spirit and Family Friendly
Native Flora/Fauna
History/Heritage
Safe/Peaceful

Our communities are proud of their
towns, history and their achievements.

’

Our new brand represents
strong values within our
thriving rural communities.

As a community we value our past
and sow the seeds for our future growth.
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UNVEILING OF THE YARRI AND JACKY SCULPTURE

The Great Rescue of 1852 — Yarri and Jacky Jacky Sculpture Celebrations

165 years on, Gundagai has survived and it’s time to celebrate, remember and reflect on an event that
almost wiped the fledgling town from the map. It’s also a time to pay homage to two brave men, who risked
their lives and rescued a third of Gundagai residents in June 1852.

As the mighty Murrumbidgee River came
roaring into town on that fateful night, Yarri
and Jacky Jacky, two Wiradjuri men set out in
their spindly bark canoes over three days and
two nights, to rescue 69 Gundagai residents
from the deadly flood waters.

Commemoration of the Great Rescue of 1852
will take place on Saturday 10 June,
commencing at 10.30am. A variety of activities
including a street march, Wiradjuri
performances and displays will be held
centering on Gundagai main street, Sheridan
Street.

The highlight of the celebrations will be the
unveiling of the Yarri and Jacky Jacky sculpture.

The Gundagai Community, incorporating
members of the local Wiradjuri community,
have commissioned the sculpture celebrating
the contribution that members of the
Wiradjuri community made in saving the
townsfolk from the great flood of 1852. The
project was commissioned to Darien Pullen
from Meridian Sculpture Foundry and depicts
the two Aboriginal men pulling a canoe out of
the water.

It has been a long hard road to get to this point and raise the money needed to fund the sculpture. Peter
Smith Chairperson of the Yarri and Jacky Jacky Sculpture committee said, he was very proud to see the
sculpture finally come to fruition.
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REVITALISE GUNDAGAI UPDATE

New Packs researched designed and implemented for distribution to new residents. Contents include:

¢ New Residents Pack
e Gundagai Heritage Walk Update G U N DAGA'
e Gundagai Visitors Guide e
e Rusconi’s Marble Masterpiece

e  Whats On Monthly Publication
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Take the time to unwind...

Development of Gundagai Event Planning & Marketing Checklist to further assist community members and
groups development and implement suiccessful events throughout Gundagai and the region.
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INTEGRATED PLANNING AND REPORTING COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The development of the Community Strategic Plan (CSP) is part of a journey that looks to establish a path of
continuous improvement for the Council in partnership with the community. While we all have a role to play
as a community in delivering the CSP, Council is one stakeholder within the mix and cannot (and should not)
undertake everything. Council will always endeavour to move forward on the areas we are able to complete,
but there are many other groups and organisations which will be able to work on the strategic outcomes of

the plan and our future.

Community
Strategic Plan

10+ years

Resourcing
. Strategy
Dellvery * Long Term

Program Financial Planning
* Workforce Management

4 years Planning

community * Asset Management
Planning

Engagement

Operational
Plan -
1year _—

Perpetual
monitoring
~ and review

Community Listening Sessions
e 12 separate workshops (11 Community Listening Sessions, and 1 All-Staff workshop)

*  Over 20 hours of direct community conversation
* 109 people came along to the Community Listening Sessions held during May and June 2017
* 87 staff participated in the All-Staff workshop held in February 2017
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Council Brand Development

* 200 people attended our community meetings and workshops

e Qver 600 people answered our survey

* 80 postcards were handed out at the Nargoon Market Day to start a conversation and encourage
attendance at the workshops

*  Approximately 200 local High School students engaged as part of branding

e Council hosted an all-day development workshop with 8 student representatives and 4 staff from
local High Schools

* 173 people provided feedback on the logo options presented

The fresh new look for our new organisation reflects shared values of country living, agricultural landscape
and friendly communities. It is a modern, organic representation of our whole region, reflecting the strong
values of our thriving rural communities.

“Wett Ciye
Kliams onoh

X ee bt -
(0% 08 *
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Villages Strategy
* 103 people dropped into our Villages Strategy Sessions
e 74 primary school students spoke to us when we visited 4 village schools

Disability Inclusion Access Plan

* 24 people participated in our Disability Inclusion Access Plan workshops
* 4 hours of workshops conversations
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Economic Development Strategy
4 workshops were held
50 community members attended

Major Projects Consultation
Over 110 responses regarding project priorities

Digital Community Panel
Presently 114 subscribers

Across these consultation activities we made
over 1,650 unique points of contact with our
community.

This represents 15% of the population of the
local government area.

D
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MAJOR FLOOD REPAIR PRIORITIES

Flood damaged Roads throughout the Council area were prioritised and repaired after heavy rain events
impacted the infrastructure.

Yeo Yeo Hampstead Road
Millvale Road

Back Brawlin Road

Ryans Lane

Bundarbo Road
Nanangroe Road

The road approaches to the bridge over Long
Tunnel Creek on Nangus road had major repair
works due to the road breaking up.

As the creek water levels dropped, crews
commenced clearing causeways and bridges.

Murrumbidgee
Mundarlo Bridge
Yarri Bridge
Morley’s Creek

The removal of logs and debris from Morley’s
Creek was completed including the removal of
the old bridge structure.
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TEMORA STREET RECONSTRUCTION COOTAMUNDRA

Road stabilisation and resealing for approximately 450m was completed on Stage One reconstruction of
Temora Street, Cootamundra.
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MAJOR WORKS ON GOBARRALONG ROAD COMPLETED

The removal of the former Gobarralong Bridge was completed after the construction of the new bridge of
approximately 100m in length was competed.
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GOBARRALONG ROAD RECONSTRUCTION

Reconstruction, Widening and Bitumen sealing of 2.2km of Gobarralong Road
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GUNDAGAI MAIN STREET REDEVELOPMENT

The main objective of the Main Street redevelopment is in beautification of the town, and revitalizing the
business community. Other flow on objectives includes enhancing the green space, incorporating public art
and interpretation for the community and visitors to enjoy and improved traffic flow and pedestrian safety.

e The Plans produced include the entire length from West Street to the Cenotaph at Virgil Street. A
minimal treatment only will be applied between West and Otway Streets— noting that a pedestrian
refuge has been built in front of Visitor Information Centre, and funding applications have been
made for a roundabout.

e The plans provide for a full streetscape treatment.

e Road Width — The current width needs to be increased to meet Australian Stand width for safe
movement of 45 degree parking. You will appreciate that currently drivers encroach over the
centerline. The width of footpath will be reduced by 1m on the southern side.

e Widening of footpaths at intersections and mid blocks — to narrow the road to significantly calm
traffic speed to provide improved safe crossing ability and better ink north and south sides of the
road.. A Balance has been struck with maintaining parking. The widening provides for opportunities
for outdoor dining on both sides of the street.

e Topography and Grade — the north side of the road grade provides challenges leading to steep
footpaths and high gutters.

e Design is based on minimizing adjustments to underground utilities and using the vertical slope to
transfer water in the gutters.

e Low retaining wall — Feature wall using slate and decorative paint for etching stories of Gundagai.
Ramps and handrails provide quality access.

e Paving — dark grey and exfoliated grey pavers layed in a pattern as recommended by our heritage
adviser, with the addition of bronze ‘story stones’ enabling the interpretation of local stories.

e Street Tree Planting — Will provide a consistent backdrop. Scaled planting to suit the street. Will add
colour. High Quality.

e Lighting — Upgraded street lighting with attractive poles.

e Seats and bins — provided at key locations providing
casual seating and opportunities for alfresco dining.
Heritage seats.

e Public Art — Expression of Gundagai’s heritage and visual
focus.
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NEW TOILET BLOCK COOTAMUNDRA

The construction of a new public toilet facility on the corner of Bourke and Murray Street Cootamundra.
The amenities replacement was a scheduled works as outlined in Councils public toilet replacement strategy
adopted by Council in 2006 The project was managed by Council staff and used both council and external
local trades and suppliers during the construction process.
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BRADMAN OVAL — NEW CRICKET WICKET

This project was completed to raise the cricket wicket surface by installing a new concrete base and synthetic
grass cover to the centre of Bradman Oval. The new wicket has improved the drainage around the wicket
and allows the ground to be more suitable for junior cricket matches.

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17 Page 29 of 42



UPGRADE COMMUNITY RECYCLING CENTRE, WASTE SHED / HARDSTAND AREAS

The construction of the new Community Recycling Centre shed as part of a REROC region waste grant. The
shed is for the deposit of household problem waste and was funded by EPA’s Waste Less Recycle More
initiative.
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TILING OF COOTAMUNDRA TODDLERS’ POOL

The tiling of the toddler’s pool at the Cootamundra Pool was completed to enhance the aesthetics and use
of the toddler’s pool. The tiling of the pool has the additional advantage of making the pool easier to clean
and reducing overall maintenance
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STATUTORY REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

The following information details Council’s response to the statutory reporting requirements of the Local
Government Act 1993 under section 428 Annual Reports and the more detailed response to the Local
Government (General) Regulation 2005.

TOTAL RATES AND CHARGES WRITTEN OFF
Local Government Act Cl 132 (5)

The total rates and charges written off was $1,130.

MAYORAL AND COUNCILLOR EXPENSES
Local Government General Regulation Cl 217(al)

There were no Mayoral or Councillor expenses during the year, as Council was in a period of
administration.

DETAILS AND PURPOSE OF OVERSEAS VISITS
Local Government General Regulation Cl 217(a)

During the year no Councillor, Council Officer or other person undertook an overseas visit as part of their
Council duties.

CONTRACTORS / WORKS AWARDED
Local Government General Regulation Cl 217(a2)

The following table details contracts awarded by Council during the year for sums of greater than
$150,000.

Contractor Name Description of Goods, Works or Service Contract sum or
estimate!
Arcscape Landscape Laying stone paving tiles in Sheridan Street $213,455
Services Gundagai
Rosmech Supply of street sweeper $321,169
Wagga Trucks Supply of two six wheeler heavy duty tipping trucks $415,546
Notes

1. Means the amount is an estimate with some estimates based on the nominated schedule of rates and
estimated quantity of work to be performed.

2. All amounts are GST inclusive.
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Local Government General Regulation Cl 217(a3)

During the year the total cost of legal expenses in relation to legal proceedings incurred by Council was
$16,473. The total amount relate to debt recovery actions.

There were no proceedings against Council during the year.

Other than debt recovery, there were no legal proceedings instigated by Council against any other party
during the year.

PRIVATE WORKS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
Local Government Act s67(3) and Local Government General Regulation Cl 217(a4)

Section 67(2) of the Local Government Act permits Council to subsidise the cost of works carried out on
private land subject to certain conditions.

Council did not undertake any works on private land where there was any decision to charge less than the
approved fee.

AMOUNTS CONTRIBUTED OR OTHERWISE GRANTED
Local Government General Regulation Cl 217(a5)

During the financial year, Council provided funding to external bodies as per section 356 of the Local
Government Act, as follows.

Stronger Communities Fund

The stronger communities fund was established by the NSW Government to kick start the delivery of
projects that improve community infrastructure and services. Council approved grant applications for 46
local community groups, funding projects to the value of $1,108,891.

Financial Assistance

Council provided financial assistance to other organisations, totalling $115,629 during the year. Council also
approved in-kind assistance to local schools and other community based organisations.

FUNCTIONS DELEGATED BY COUNCIL
Local Government General Regulation Cl 217(a6)

To better engage the community and reflect local community views and needs, Council delegates a range
of its functions to volunteer committees and other organisations.

The following committees were involved in the planning and management of Council facilities or functions
and were appointed in accordance with section 355 of the Local Government Act.

e Bradman’s Birthplace Management
e Cootamundra Showground Users
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e  Wallendbeen Memorial Hall

e Stockinbingal Hall

e Cootamundra Beach Volleyball Festival

e Cootamundra Heritage Centre Management

e Cootamundra Concert Band

e Muttama Creek Regeneration Group

e Cootamundra Creative Arts and Cultural Centre

CONTROLLING INTEREST STATEMENT
Local Government General Regulation Cl 217(a7)

Council held no controlling interests in companies during the 2016-17 year.

EXTERNAL BODIES, COMPANIES OR PARTNERSHIPS
Local Government General Regulation Cl 217(a8)

Cootamundra Development Corporation Limited

Cootamundra Development Corporation is a company limited by guarantee that provides services to
Cootamundra businesses, with the objective to develop Cootamundra and district. Council has
representation on the board of management.

Council benefits from services provided in accordance with a memorandum of understanding, in exchange
for a Council contribution of $30,323 per annum. The services provided relate to tourism and economic
development.

Goldenfields Water County Council

Goldenfields Water County Council is a local water authority that provides water directly to residents within
the Council area. In addition, Council purchases bulk water from Goldenfields and supplies it to residents
within the Cootamundra township.

Council has one Council representative on the Goldenfields Water County Council.

Riverina Eastern Regional Organisation of Councils (REROC)

REROC is a voluntary association of 9 General Purpose Councils and 2 water county Councils. Initially
established with a focus on resource sharing activities which save money for member councils, REROC's
activities have grown to encompass regional planning, intergovernmental collaborations and advocacy and
lobbying. Virtually every operational area of local government has been touched by the activities of REROC
with the purpose of delivering more efficient and effective outcomes by utilising both the number of
members and their combined demands and resources to create scale and capacity.
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Riverina Joint Organisation

REROC was selected to work with the NSW Government to develop a new model to replace ROCs, called
Joint Organisations (JOs). JOs will become legal entities with additional administrative and compliance
requirements imposed by legislation. REROC is one of five groups of NSW councils that are piloting the JO
structure. Each of the groups has a strong history and a commitment to partnering with the State to address
regional priorities such as economic development, transport and infrastructure.

Riverina Regional Library

The Riverina Regional Library (RRL) is the largest regional library service in NSW. It provides library services
to approximately 137,845 constituents of 10 local government areas in a partnership arrangement with
those Councils, being Bland, Coolamon, Cootamundra-Gundagai, Federation, Greater Hume, Junee,
Lockhart, Temora, Snowy Valleys and the City of Wagga Wagga. The service consists of 18 stationary library
branches and a mobile library spread over an area of 47,830 sq km.

Riverina Regional Tourism

Council is a member of the peak regional tourism organisation in the Riverina; Riverina Regional
Tourism (RRT). The key role of the organisation is as a tourism marketing body for the Riverina.
Council contributes to the direction of RRT as a member, working collaboratively with the other
member Councils to promote the region. RRT has been responsible for a number of successful
tourism campaigns throughout the year, including TASTE Riverina.

Softwoods Working Group

Council is a member of the Softwoods Working Group. The group was formed in response to the rapid
expansion of the softwood plantation industry. It has a key objective to lobby for adequate funding to
upgrade and maintain the road network with a load capacity that can support the heavy haulage vehicles of
the timber processing industries.

South East Weight of Loads Group

Council is a member of the South East Weight of Loads Group which was formed to ensure that road
pavements are protected against overloaded vehicles in the South Eastern Region of New South Wales. The
Group enforces the weight of loads restrictions within the participating local government areas.

Council administers the investment of this group, being their unexpended funding, at a fee of 0.25%.

South West Regional Waste Management Group

The South West Regional Waste Management Group is a regional collaboration that jointly manages waste
management and has long term contracts with the operator of the Bald Hill Quarry (near Jugiong) to use as
a landfill site.
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South West Slopes Zone Rural Fire Service

Council is a member of the South West Slopes Zone Rural Fire Service, with Hilltops Council.
The Group controls the obligations of both Councils under the Rural Fires Act, 1997 and jointly
employs a Fire Control Officer and four other personnel to co-ordinate the activities of the
group. All positions are based in the township of Harden and utilise the services of an extensive
radio network to maintain contact with the volunteer Bushfire Brigades.

NSW Local Government Mutual Liability Scheme (Statewide)

Statewide Mutual is a discretionary mutual pool scheme providing insurance cover for its member council’s
major insurable risks. It is a self insurance mutual which is backed by reinsurance placed through local and
international underwriters. Members own each scheme and benefit from building equity resulting from
surplus contributions.

EEO MANAGEMENT PLAN IMPLEMENTATION
Local Government General Regulation Cl 217(a9)

Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) focuses on recognises and valuing diversity within the workplace. This
means having workplace policies, practices and behaviours that are fair and do not disadvantage people
who belong to particular groups.

Council provides a large number of services to a diverse community and aims to promote an environment
free from harassment, bullying, victimisation and discrimination. We have an EEO Management Plan with
strategies that assist members of EEO groups to overcome past and present disadvantages.

Key EEO activities implemented during the year were:

e Facilitating induction programs for new employees including EEO practices

o Implementing traineeship and apprenticeship programs across Council

e Using merit based recruitment practices

e Reviewing and managing Council’s Employee Assistance Program

e Managing the ongoing review and implementation of HR policies and procedures that support staff
grievance resolution, anti-discrimination, workplace bullying and harassment.

e Implementing staff training programs.

e Facilitating appropriate workplace communication.

TOTAL REMUNERATION FOR GENERAL MANAGER AND SENIOR STAFF
Local Government General Regulation Cl 217(b) and (c)

During the 2016-17 financial year Council’s senior officers were comprised of:

General Manager

Deputy General Manager / Interim Director Assets
Director Operations

Director Corporate Services

General Manager $511,052
Senior Staff $305,503
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Note that the General Manager total remuneration includes a termination payment that comprises accrued
annual leave, long service leave and a redundancy amount.

Note that the Director Operations and Director Corporate Services were senior staff members for a part year
only.

STORMWATER LEVIES AND CHARGES
Local Government General Regulation Cl 217(e)

Council levies an annual Stormwater Management Charge to both residential and business properties,
subject to exemptions provided for under the Local Government Act 1993. All funds raised are applied to
stormwater management improvements, including the following projects completed during the year:

e Florance Street, remediation works and culverts

SPECIAL RATE VARIATION EXPENDITURE
Local Government Act 1993 s508(2)

2014-15 Ten year variation

The former Gundagai Shire Council applied for a special rate variation of 12.82% above the rate peg for a
period of 10 years from 2014-15 to 2023-2024.

The total income received in the 2016-17 year was $423,793. The additional income is used for the purpose
of financing the debt servicing cost of a $3m bank loan to fund the main street upgrade project. The total
debt servicing expense in the 2016-17 year was $368,109.

2008-09 Ten year variation

The former Gundagai Shire Council applied for a special rate variation of 12.89% above the rate peg for a
period of ten years from 2008-09 to 2017-18.

The total income received in the 2016-17 year was $259,636. The former Gundagai Shire Council stated that
the principal driver behind their application was to maintain/upgrade and to a lesser extent expand its
infrastructure assets.

COMPANION ANIMALS MANAGEMENT
Local Government General Regulation Cl 217(f)

Council has lodged its pound data collection return with the Office of Local Government. A copy of the data
lodged is included here. Council had 8 recorded dog attacks over the past twelve months with varying
degrees of seriousness resulting in dogs being declared dangerous, menacing and nuisance dogs. Council
receipted $4,460.00 in registration fees during the 2016-17 financial year.
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Council has a very high rate of re-homing impounded animals, as can been seen by the below table, this is
able to be achieved through a number of successful strategies. A large network of animal rescue
organisations is maintained and utilised to assist with the re-homing process by Nic Godber, a volunteer
who works closely with the Council. She, with the Ranger and Senior Regulatory Officer administer The
Cootamundra Pound Facebook page to re-home unwanted animals. Council’s Facebook page is an extremely
successful method of not only rehoming animals but also is used to educate the community in regard to
responsible pet ownership.

Council has a very strong public education campaign. This strong presence continued this year, with Council
successfully applying for a $15,000 Responsible Pet Ownership grant from the Office of Local Government.
The grant is being used to educate the community in regard to the benefits and legalities of responsible pet
ownership. Council has purchased a caravan which is currently being converted to a mobile education centre
which will be used at schools and shows to highlight responsible pet ownership.

Council has two designated off leash areas that cater for most dog owners within the town boundaries.
Council also has a fenced off-leash area on the corner of Thompson and Hurley Streets that is utilised by
locals and also benefits travellers who are able to stop and exercise their dogs in the safety of a fenced area.
These areas are serviced with dog tidy dispensers, providing owners with disposable tidy bags for animal
clean-up.

Seizure details Ju Aug Sep Oct No Dec Jan Feb Ma Apr Ma Jun
Seized 9 14 14 20 10 4 6 4 16 10 12 8
Returned to owner no 1 4 0 2 0 0 0 2 2 2 0 1
impounding

Transferred to Council 8 10 14 18 10 4 6 2 14 8 12 7
pound

Release details Juu Aug Sep Oct No Dec Jan Feb Ma Apr Ma Jun
Released to owner from 3 5 6 10 4 3 2 0 4 3 6 4
pound

Released for rehoming 3 7 3 1 2 0 4 4 10 6 4 2
Stolen from council 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
pound

Euthanised 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0
Total 6 12 9 12 6 3 6 4 14 9 14 6

Summary of Seizures & Impounding’s

Total dogs received 127
Returned to owner 50
rehomed 70
Euthanised 5
In pound at 30.6.17 2
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50
m Total dogs received Returned to owner
= rehomed m Euthenised

In pound at 30.6.17

GOVERNMENT INFORMATION PUBLIC ACCESS (GIPA) ANNUAL REPORT
Government Information (Public Access) Act 2009 section 125 (1)

Review of proactive release program

In accordance with section 7 of the GIPA Act, agencies must review their programs for the release of
government information to identify the kinds of information that can be made publically available. This
review must be undertaken at least once every 12 months. Council undertook the following initiatives as
part of the review of its proactive release program for the reporting period.

e Creation of a new Council website and addition of policy documents.
e Commenced drafting a new agency information guide.

Number of access applications received

During the reporting period, Council received a total of 6 formal access applications. There were nil invalid
applications.

No applications were transferred to other agencies.

Number of refused applications

No access applications were refused either wholly or in part.

No applications were refused based upon a conclusive presumption of overriding public interest against
disclosure.

Timeliness

5 applications were decided within the statutory timeframe (20 days plus extensions) and 1 was decided
after 35 days by agreement with the applicant.
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Reviews

There were no reviews of application requests and no requests for any decisions to be reviewed.

Number of applications by type and outcome
Access Access Access
granted @ granted refused
in full in part in full

not held

Media - - - -
Members of - - - -
Parliament

Private sector 3 - - -
business

Not for profit - - - -
organisations or

community

groups

Members of the - - - 1
public

(application by

legal

representative)

Members of the 1 - - -
public (other)

Number of applications by type of application and outcome
Information
not held

Access
refused
in full

Access Access
granted granted
in full in part

Personal 2 - - 1
information

applications

Access 1 - - -
applications
(other than
personal
information
applications)
Access
applications
that are partly
personal
information
applications
and partly
other
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Information

already
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Information
already
available

Refuse to
deal with
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Refuse to
deal with
application

Refuse to Application
confirm/deny | withdrawn
whether
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confirm / withdrawn
deny
whether
information
is held
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PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURES
Public Interest Disclosures Act 1994 Regulation 2011

Council has an adopted Internal Reporting Policy in accordance with the requirements of the Public
Interest Disclosures Act 1994 (PID Act). The policy provides a mechanism for Council Officials to make
disclosures about serious wrongdoing.

During the year, the following disclosures were made under this policy.

Number of public officials who made public interest disclosures -
Number of public interest disclosures received -
Of public interest disclosures, number primarily about:

- Corrupt conduct n/a
- Maladministration n/a
- Serious and substantial waste n/a
- Government information contravention n/a
- Pecuniary interest contravention n/a

CODE OF CONDUCT
Code of Conduct Administration Procedure, Part 12

All staff and Councillors are bound to comply with the Council’s Code of Conduct. All complaints are
investigated and dealt with in accordance with the Code of Conduct Policy and Procedure. The following
statistics are reported about code of conduct complaints made during the period 1 September 2016 to 31
August 2017.

Total
a) Complaints made about councillors and the general manager 1
b) Referred to a conduct reviewer -
c) Finalised by a conduct reviewer at the preliminary assessment stage -
Outcomes of finalised complaints: n/a
d) Complaints investigated by a conduct reviewer -
e) Complaints investigated by a conduct review committee -
f) Outcomes of finalised complaints: n/a
g) Reviewed by the Office of Local Government -
Outcomes of reviews: n/a
h) Cost of dealing with complaints about councillors and the general manager, $650
including staff costs
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COUNCIL CONTACT DETAILS

For a copy of this report or information concerning documents referred to herein please contact

COOTAMUNDRA-GUNDAGAI REGIONAL COUNCIL
Open: 9am — 5pm Monday to Friday
Fax: (02) 6940 2127
Postal Address: PO Box 420 Cootamundra NSW 2590
Email: mail@cgrc.nsw.gov.au
Website: www.cgrc.nsw.gov.au

Cootamundra Office
Address: 81 Wallendoon Street, Cootamundra, NSW 2590
Phone: (02) 6940 2100

COOTAMUNDRA-
GU

WELCOME TO

COOTAMUNDRA

PART OF THE COOTAMUNDRA-GUNDAGAI REGION

Gundagai Office
Address: 255 Sheridan Street, Gundagai NSW 2722
Telephone: (02) 6944 0200

WELCOME TO

GUNDAGAI

PART OF THE COOTAMUNDRA-GUNDAGAI REGION
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council
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Overview

(i)  These financial statements are General Purpose Financial Statements and cover the operations for
Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council.

(i)  Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council is a body politic of NSW, Australia — being constituted as a local
government area by proclamation and is duly empowered by the Local Government Act 1993 (LGA).

Council’s guiding principles are detailed in Chapter 3 of the LGA and includes:

¢ principles applying to the exercise of functions generally by council,
® principles to be applied when making decisions,

® principles of community participation,

® principles of sound financial management, and

* principles for strategic planning relating to the development of an integrated planning and reporting framework.
A description of the nature of Council’s operations and its principal activities are provided in Note 2(b).
(iii)  All figures presented in these financial statements are presented in Australian currency.

(iv) These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Council on 30 October 2017.
Council has the power to amend and reissue these financial statements.
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Financial Statements 2017

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Statement by Councillors and Management
made pursuant to Section 413(2)(c) of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended)

The attached General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:
® the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended) and the regulations made thereunder,
® the Australian Accounting Standards and professional pronouncements, and

® the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these financial statements:

® present fairly the Council's operating result and financial position for the period 13 May 2016
to 30 June 2017, and

® accerd with Council's accounting and other records.

We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 19 Octobher 2017.

277 A ‘

Abb McAlister Dennis Palmer
Mayor Councillor
7
4
L
»'i\'.‘ —_—
M . ]
Allen Dwyer J Kate Monaghan
General Manager Responsible accounting officer
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Income Statement
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Financial Statements 2017

Actual
13/5/16
$°'000 Notes to 30/6/17
Income from continuing operations
Revenue:
Rates and annual charges 3a 12,875
User charges and fees 3b 6,576
Interest and investment revenue 3c 1,350
Other revenues 3d 867
Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes 3e,f 16,787
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 3e,f 9,939
Other income:
Net gains from the disposal of assets 5 241
Net share of interests in joint ventures and
associates using the equity method 19 -
Total income from continuing operations 48,635
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 4a 12,093
Borrowing costs 4b 185
Materials and contracts 4c 9,959
Depreciation and amortisation 4d 9,322
Impairment 4d -
Other expenses 4e 12,019
Interest and investment losses 3c -
Net losses from the disposal of assets 5 -
Total expenses from continuing operations 43,578
Operating result from continuing operations 5,057
Discontinued operations
Net profit/(loss) from discontinued operations 24 -
Net operating result for the period 5,057
Gain on local government amalgamation
Assets and liabilities transferred from former councils 29 400,288
Net result for the period 405,345
Net operating result attributable to Council 405,345
Net operating result attributable to non-controlling interests -
Net operating result for the period before grants and
contributions provided for capital purposes (4,882)
This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. page 3



Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Financial Statements 2017

Actual
13/5/16
$ 000 Notes to 30/6/17
Net result for the year (as per Income Statement) 405,345
Other comprehensive income:
Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating result
Gain (loss) on revaluation of I,PP&E 20Db (ii) 1,667
Total items which will not be reclassified subsequently
to the operating result 1,667
Amounts which will be reclassified subsequently to the operating result
when specific conditions are met
Nil
Total other comprehensive income for the period 1,667
Total comprehensive income for the period 407,012
Total comprehensive income attributable to Council 407,012
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests —
This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. page 4



Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2017

Financial Statements 2017

Actual
$°'000 Notes 2017
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6a 7,555
Investments 6b 33,826
Receivables 3,148
Inventories 1,163
Other 1
Total current assets 45,693
Non-current assets
Investments 6b —
Receivables -
Inventories 826
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 369,324
Investments accounted for using the equity method 19 -
Intangible assets 25 299
Other 8 —
Total non-current assets 370,449
TOTAL ASSETS 416,142
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables 10 2,374
Income received in advance 10 -
Borrowings 10 410
Provisions 10 3,026
Total current liabilities 5,810
Non-current liabilities
Payables 10 -
Income received in advance 10 -
Borrowings 10 3,049
Provisions 10 271
Total non-current liabilities 3,320
TOTAL LIABILITIES 9,130
Net assets 407,012
EQUITY
Retained earnings 20 405,345
Revaluation reserves 20 1,667
Other reserves 20 —
Council equity interest 407,012
Total equity 407,012
This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. page 5



Financial Statements 2017

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

13/5/16 to 30/6/17 Asset
revaluation Other Non- Actual
Retained reserve reserves Council controlling Total
$°'000 Notes earnings (Refer 20b) (Refer 20b) interest interest equity

Opening balance _ - - _

a. Correction of prior period errors 20 (c) - - - - - -
b. Changes in accounting policies (prior year effects) 20 (d) - - - — - —
Revised opening balance - - - - — —
c. Net result for the year 405,345 - - 405,345 - 405,345
d. Other comprehensive income

— Revaluations: IPP&E asset revaluation reserve 20b (ii) - 1,667 - 1,667 - 1,667
— Revaluations: other reserves 20b (ii) - - - - - -
— Transfers to Income Statement 20b (ii) - - - - - -
— Impairment (loss) reversal relating to |,PP&E 20b (i) - - - - — -
— Joint ventures and associates 19b - - - - - -
— Other reserves movements 20D (ii) — — - - - -
Other comprehensive income - 1,667 - 1,667 - 1,667
Total comprehensive income (c&d) 405,345 1,667 - 407,012 - 407,012
€. Distributions to/(contributions from) non-controlling interests - — — - — —
f. Transfers between equity - - — — _ _
Equity — balance at end of the reporting period 405,345 1,667 — 407,012 - 407,012

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. page 6



Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Statement of Cash Flows
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Financial Statements 2017

Actual
13/5/16
$ 000 Notes to 30/6/17
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts:
Rates and annual charges 14,359
User charges and fees 6,074
Investment and interest revenue received 1,165
Grants and contributions 28,019
Other 2,635
Payments:
Employee benefits and on-costs (12,201)
Materials and contracts (10,393)
Borrowing costs (148)
Bonds, deposits and retention amounts refunded (245)
Other (6,985)
Net cash provided (or used in) operating activities 11b 22,280
Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts:
Sale of investment securities 25,638
Sale of real estate assets 195
Sale of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 363
Deferred debtors receipts 10
Payments:
Purchase of investment securities (35,470)
Purchase of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (8,661)
Purchase of real estate assets (107)
Net cash provided (or used in) investing activities (18,032)
Cash flows from financing activities
Receipts:
Nil
Payments:
Repayment of borrowings and advances (392)
Net cash flow provided (used in) financing activities (392)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,856
Plus: cash transferred on amalgamation of councils 29 3,699
Cash and cash equivalents — end of the year 1la 7,555
Additional Information:
plus: Investments on hand — end of year 6b 33,826
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 41,381
Please refer to Note 11 for additional cash flow information
This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. page 7



Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Contents of the notes accompanying the financial statements

Note

2(a)
2(b)

6(a)
6(b)
6(c)

9(a)
9(b)
9(c)
10(a)
10(b)
11
12
13

14
15
16
17
18
19

20

21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

Details

Summary of significant accounting policies

Council functions/activities — financial information

Council functions/activities — component descriptions

Income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations

Gains or losses from the disposal of assets

Cash and cash equivalent assets

Investments

Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — details
Receivables

Inventories and other assets

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Externally restricted infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment — current year impairments
Payables, borrowings and provisions

Description of (and movements in) provisions

Statement of cash flows — additional information

Commitments for expenditure

Statement of performance measures:

13a Local government industry indicators (consolidated)
13b Local government industry indicators (by fund)
Investment properties

Financial risk management

Material budget variations

Statement of developer contributions

Contingencies and other liabilities/assets not recognised
Interests in other entities

Retained earnings, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting
policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors

Financial result and financial position by fund

‘Held for sale’ non-current assets and disposal groups
Events occurring after the reporting date
Discontinued operations

Intangible assets

Reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration liabilities
Fair value measurement

Related party disclosures

Local Government amalgamation

Council information and contact details

n/a — not applicable

Financial Statements 2017

Page

20
21
22
27
31
32
32
33
35
36
38
39
39 n/a
40
41
41
42 nia

43
44
45 n/a
45
48 n/a
49
51
52 n/a

53

54
56 n/a
56 n/a
56 n/a

57

57

58
64 n/a

64

67
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Financial Statements 2017

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The local government Council Amalgamations
Proclamation 2016 (‘the Proclamation’) under the
Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) transferred the
assets and liabilities of 2 former councils:

= Gundagai Shire Council
= Cootamundra Shire Council

to Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council as at
12 May 2016.

Pursuant to the Proclamation, financial statements
have been prepared for the period commencing on
the date of establishment of Cootamundra-Gundagai
Regional Council, being 13 May 2016 and ending on
30 June 2017.

Future reporting periods will be from 1 July to 30
June of the relevant years.

Assets and liabilities of Gundagai Shire Council and
Cootamundra Shire Council have been recognised
by the Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council at
the carrying amount recorded by the former councils.

Where the former councils had different accounting
policies, an adjustment has been made on day 1 of
the new council to align the policies and account for
similar transactions and balances on the same
basis. These adjustments have been performed as
part of the assessment of the fair value of the assets
and liabilities obtained.

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council believes
the carrying amounts are not materially different
from their fair values as at the date of transfer 12
May 2016, except for the following items which have
been excluded from the carrying amounts. These
are shown as an adjustment in Note 29.

- The former Cootamundra Shire Council recognised
its partnership within the Riverina Regional Library
as a joint venture, and applied the equity method of
accounting based on the Council’'s proportional
contribution to the library operations. Gundagai Shire
Council did not recognise any asset or income for its

same agreement. In accordance with AASB 11,
Council does not have joint control, and the
agreement does not meet the definition of a joint
venture or joint operation.

- The former Cootamundra and former Gundagai
Shire Councils recognised plant and equipment and
building assets that are owned and controlled by the
NSW Rural Fire Service. These assets have been
derecognised as they are not operated or controlled
by the Council.

- The former Cootamundra Shire Council recognised
capital levy amounts paid as a member of Statecover
Insurance Mutual as an asset, where the former
Gundagai Shire Council had recognised those
payments as an expense. The value of the asset
recognised by the former Cootamundra Shire Council
was derecognised.

- The former Gundagai Shire Council recognised a
provision for the restoration of gravel pits, however
the amount of the provision could not be
substantiated, and the provision has been
derecognised.

After making these adjustments, the fair value of the
net assets has been shown as a gain on local
government amalgamation in the income statement
and further information is provided in Note 29.

These general purpose financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards and Australian Accounting
Interpretations, the Local Government Act 1993
(NSW) and Regulations, and the Local Government
Code of Accounting Practice and Financial
Reporting. Council is a not for-profit entity for the
purpose of preparing these financial statements.

(i) New and amended standards adopted by
Council

There have been no new accounting standards
adopted in this year’'s financial statements which
have had any material impact on reported financial
position, performance or cash flows.

(ii) Early adoption of standards
Council has not elected to apply any

pronouncements before their operative date in the
annual reporting period beginning 1 July 2016.
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Financial Statements 2017

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(iii) Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of certain financial assets and
liabilities and certain classes of property, plant and
equipment and investment property.

(iv) Significant estimates and
judgements

accounting

The preparation of financial statements requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Council's accounting
policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the Council and that
are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Council makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year include:

(i) Estimated fair values of infrastructure, property,
plant and equipment,

Significant judgements in applying the Council's
accounting policies

(i) Impairment of Receivables

Council has made a significant judgement about the
impairment of a number of its receivables in Note 7.

(b) Revenue recognition

Council recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Council and
specific criteria have been met for each of the
Council’s activities as described below.

Council bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the
type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
measured on major income categories as follows:

(i) Rates, annual
contributions

charges, grants and

Rates, annual charges, grants and contributions
(including developer contributions) are recognised as
revenue when the Council obtains control over the
assets comprising these receipts. Developer
contributions may only be expended for the purposes
for which the contributions were required, but the
Council may apply contributions according to the
priorities established in work schedules.

Control over assets acquired from rates and annual
charges is obtained at the commencement of the
rating year as it is an enforceable debt linked to the
rateable property or, where earlier, upon receipt of
the rates.

Control over granted assets/contributed assets is
normally obtained upon their receipt (or acquittal) or
upon earlier notification that a grant has been
secured, and is valued at their fair value at the date
of transfer.

Where grants or contributions recognised as
revenues during the financial year were obtained on
condition that they be expended in a particular
manner or used over a particular period and those
conditions were un-discharged at reporting date, the
unused grant or contribution is disclosed in Note
3(g). The note also discloses the amount of unused
grant or contribution from prior years that was
expended on Council's operations during the current
year.

A liability is recognised in respect of revenue that is
reciprocal in nature to the extent that the requisite
service has not been provided at reporting date.

(il) User charges and fees

User charges and fees are recognised as revenue
when the service has been provided.
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Financial Statements 2017

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(iii) Sale of infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment

The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined
when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to
the buyer.

(iv) Interest

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest rate at the date that interest is earned.

(v) Rent

Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

(vi) Dividend income

Revenue is recognised when the Council’s right to
receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

(vii) Other income

Other income is recorded when the payment is due,
the value of the payment is notified, or the payment
is received, whichever occurs first.

(c) Principles of consolidation
(i) The Consolidated Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 409(1)
of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW), all money
and property received by Council is held in the
Council's Consolidated Fund unless it is required to
be held in the Council’s Trust Fund.

Cash and other assets of the following entities have
been included as part of the Consolidated Fund:

= General purpose operations
=  Water supply service
= Sewerage service

(if) The Trust Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of
the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as
amended), a separate and distinct Trust Fund is
maintained to account for all money and property
received by the Council in trust which must be
applied only for the purposes of, or in accordance

with the trusts relating to those monies. Trust monies
and property subject to Council’'s control have been
included in these reports.

Trust monies and property held by Council but not
subject to the control of Council have been excluded
from these reports. A separate statement of monies
held in the Trust Fund is available for inspection at
the Council office by any person free of charge.

(iii) County Councils

Council is a member of the Goldenfields Water
County Council, a body corporate established under
the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) to provide
water services within its area of operation. Council is
one of seven constituent members and neither
controls nor significantly influences the County
Council. Accordingly, the County Council has not
been consolidated in the financial statements.

(iv) Interests in other entities

Subsidiaries

Council has no interest in any subsidiaries.

Joint arrangements

Council has no interest in any joint arrangements.
(d) Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where
Council, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net
of finance charges, are included in other short-term
and long-term payables. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to the income statement over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the asset's useful
life or over the shorter of the asset’'s useful life and
the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Council will obtain ownership at the end of the lease
term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are not transferred to Council
as lessee are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

Lease income from operating leases where Council
is a lessor is recognised as income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

(e) Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
are not yet available for use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.

Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

(f) Cash and cash equivalents

For Statement of Cash Flow presentation purposes,
cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand;
deposits held at call with financial institutions; other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value;
and bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the Statement of Financial
Position.

(9) Inventories

(i) Raw materials and stores, work in progress
and finished goods

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and
finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of
normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to
individual items of inventory on basis of weighted
average costs. Costs of purchased inventory are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

(i) Inventory held for distribution

Inventory held for distribution is held at cost, adjusted
where applicable for any loss of service potential.

(i) Land held for
borrowing costs

resale/capitalisation  of

Land held for resale is stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is assigned by specific
identification and includes the cost of acquisition, and
development and  borrowing costs  during
development. When development is completed
borrowing costs and other holding charges are
expensed as incurred.

Borrowing costs included in the cost of land held for
resale are those costs that would have been avoided
if the expenditure on the acquisition and
development of the land had not been made.
Borrowing costs incurred while active development is
interrupted for extended periods are recognised as
expenses.
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Non-current assets (or disposal groups)

held for sale and discontinued
operations
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are

classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will
be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use.

They are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for
assets such as deferred tax assets; assets arising
from employee benefits; financial assets; and
investment properties that are carried at fair value
and contractual rights under insurance contracts,
which are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal
group) to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is
recognised for any subsequent increases in fair
value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal
group), but not in excess of any cumulative
impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or
loss not previously recognised by the date of the
sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is
recognised at the date of de-recognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a
disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised
while they are classified as held for sale. Interest
and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a
disposal group classified as held for sale continue to
be recognised.

(i) Investments and other financial assets
Classification

Council classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity
investments; and available-for-sale financial assets.

The classification depends on the purpose for which
the investments were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its investments at
initial recognition and, in the case of assets
classified as held-to-maturity, re-evaluates this
designation at each reporting date.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short-term. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for those with maturities
greater than 12 months after the reporting date which
that are classified as non-current assets.

Loans and receivables are included in other
receivables (note 8) and receivables (note 7) in the
Statement of Financial Position.

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. Receivables are generally due for
settlement within 30 days.

Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not
discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(iii) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that Council’'s management has
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. If
Council were to sell other than an insignificant
amount of held-to-maturity financial assets, the whole
category would be tainted and reclassified as
available-for-sale.

Held-to-maturity financial assets are included in non-
current assets, except for those with maturities less
than 12 months from the reporting date, that are
classified as current assets.

(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not

classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management

page 13



Financial Statements 2017

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

intends to dispose of the investment within 12
months of the reporting date.

Investments are designated as available-for-sale if
they do not have fixed maturities and fixed or
determinable payments and management intends to
hold them for the medium to long term.

Recognition and de-recognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date: the date on which Council
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value and transaction costs are
expensed in the income statement.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and Council has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are
sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income
statement as gains and losses from investment
securities.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
investments are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of other monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-sale
are recognised in equity.

Impairment

Council assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss

event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered an indicator that the assets are impaired.

(i) Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. If a
loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Council may measure impairment on
the basis of an instrument's fair value using an
observable market price.

Collectability of receivables is reviewed on an on-
going basis. Debts that are known to be uncollectible
are written off by reducing the carrying amount
directly. An allowance account (provision for
impairment of receivables) is used when there is
objective evidence that Council will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of the receivables.

Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments (more than 30 days overdue) are
considered indicators that the receivable is impaired.
The amount of the impairment allowance is the
difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in
the income statement within other expenses. When a
receivable for which an impairment allowance had
been recognised becomes uncollectible in a
subsequent period it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

amounts previously written off are credited against
other expenses in the income statement.

Investment Policy

Council has an approved investment policy
complying with Section 625 of the Local Government
Act 1993 (NSW) and Clause 212 of the Local
Government (General) Regulation 2005 (NSW).

Investments are placed and managed in accordance
with that policy and having particular regard to
authorised investments prescribed under the
Ministerial Local Government Investment Order.
Council maintains an investment policy that complies
with the Act and ensures that it, or its
representatives, exercise the care, diligence and skill
that a prudent person would exercise in investing
Council funds.

financial

() Fair value estimation -

instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities must be estimated for recognition and
measurement or for disclosure purposes.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques. Council uses a variety of
methods and makes assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at each reporting date.
Other techniques, such as estimated discounted
cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments
of trade receivables and payables are assumed to
approximate their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is
available to the Council for similar financial
instruments.

(k) Infrastructure, and

equipment (IPPE)

property, plant

Council’'s assets have been progressively revalued to
fair value in accordance with a staged
implementation advised by the Office of Local
Government. At reporting date, the following classes
of IPPE were stated at their fair value:

Externally valued:

« Operational land

« Buildings — specialised/non-specialised

e  Other structures

« Roads assets including roads, bridges and
footpaths

« Bulk earthworks

« Stormwater drainage

« Water and sewerage networks

Internally valued:

« Community land

« Buildings — specialised/non-specialised

« Roads assets including roads, bridges and
footpaths

« Bulk earthworks

« Stormwater drainage

e« Swimming pools

As approximated by depreciated historical cost:

« Plant and equipment

« Land improvements

e Other structures

« Other open space/recreational assets
e Other assets

The former Councils have for some classes, used
different valuation methods. Therefore, some asset
classes are listed above more than once. Council
intends to progressively revalue all assets using a
common methodology, progressively over the
coming years.

Non-specialised assets with short useful lives are
measured at depreciated historical cost as an
approximation of fair value. Council has assessed
that any difference between fair value and
depreciated historical cost is unlikely to be material.

Water and sewerage network assets are indexed
annually between full revaluations in accordance with
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

the latest indices provided in the NSW Office of
Water Rates Reference Manual.

For all other asset classes, Council assesses at
each reporting date whether there is any indication
that a revalued asset’s carrying amount may differ
materially from that which would be determined if the
asset were revalued at the reporting date. If any
such indication exists, Council determines the
asset's fair value and revalue the asset to that
amount. Full revaluations are undertaken for all
assets on a five-year cycle.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on
revaluation are credited to the asset revaluation
reserve. To the extent that the increase reverses a
decrease previously recognising profit or loss
relating to that asset class, the increase is first
recognised as profit or loss.

Decreases that reverse previous increases of assets
in the same class are first charged against
revaluation reserves directly in equity to the extent of
the remaining reserve attributable to the class; all
other decreases are charged to the Income
Statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to Council and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation
Land is not depreciated.

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Plant and equipment

- Office equipment 5to 20 years
- Office furniture 10 to 20 years
- Computer equipment 4 years

- Vehicles 51to 10 years
- Heavy plant/road making equipment 5 to 8 years

- Other plant and equipment 5to 15 years

Other equipment

- Playground equipment 5to 15 years

- Benches, seats etc.

Buildings
- Buildings: masonry
- Buildings: other

Water and sewer assets
- Reservoirs

- Treatment work

- Reticulation pipes: PVC
- Reticulation pipes: other
- Pumps and telemetry

Stormwater assets

- Drains

- Culverts

- Flood control structures

Transportation assets

- Sealed roads: surface

- Sealed roads: structure

- Unsealed roads

- Bridge: concrete

- Bridge: other

- Road pavements

- Kerb, gutter and footpaths

Other infrastructure assets

- Bulk earthworks

- Swimming pools

- Other open space/
Recreational assets

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted

reporting date.

Financial Statements 2017

10 to 20 years

50 to 100 years
20 to 40 years

40 to 100 years
30 to 100 years
70 to 80 years
25to 75 years
15 to 20 years

70 to 200 years
100 years
100 to 200 years

15 to 40 years
75 to 125 years
20 years

80 to 130 years
70 to 100 years
100 years

30 to 60 years

Infinite
60 to 100 years

5 to 60 years

if appropriate, at each

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in the income statement.

() Investment property

Council does not hold any investment properties as
at 30 June 2017.

(m) Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Council prior to the end of
financial year that are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition.
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
the income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are removed from the Statement of
Financial Position when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in other income or
finance cost.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
Council has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting date.

(o) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing
costs are expensed.

(p) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when Council has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management's best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date. The discount rate used to determine
the present value reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

(g) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits, annual leave and long service
leave expected to be wholly settled within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees' services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled.

The liability for annual leave and long service leave is
recognised in the provision for employee benefits. All
other short-term employee benefit obligations are
presented as payables.

(if) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liability for long service leave and annual leave
that is not expected to be wholly settled within 12
months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service is recognised
in the provision for employee benefits and measured
as the present value of expected future payments to
be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting period
using the projected unit credit method.

Consideration is given to expected future wage and
salary levels, experience of employee departures,
and periods of service. Expected future payments
are discounted using market yields at the end of the
reporting period on national government bonds with
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely
as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in
the Statement of Financial Position if the Council
does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting
date, regardless of when the actual settlement is
expected to occur.

(iii) Retirement benefit obligations

All employees of the Council are entitled to benefits
on retirement, disability or death. Council contributes
to various defined benefit plans and defined
contribution plans on behalf of its employees.

Defined Benefit Plans

A liability or asset in respect of defined benefit
superannuation plans would ordinarily be recognised
in the Statement of Financial Position, and
measured as the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the reporting date plus unrecognised
actuarial gains (less unrecognised actuarial losses)
less the fair value of the superannuation fund’s
assets at that date and any unrecognised past
service cost.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
based on expected future payments that arise from
membership of the fund to the reporting date,
calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit method.

Consideration is given to expected future wage and
salary levels, experience of employee departures,
and periods of service. However, when this
information is not reliably available, Council
accounts for its obligations to defined benefit plans
on the same basis as its obligations to defined
contribution plans, i.e. as an expense when it
becomes payable.

Defined Contribution Plans

Contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognised as an expense as they become payable.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

(r) Land under roads

Land under roads is land under roadways and road
reserves including land under footpaths, nature strips
and median strips.

Council has elected not to recognise land under
roads acquired before 1 July 2008 in accordance
with AASB 1051 Land Under Roads.

Land under roads acquired after 1 July 2008 is
recognised in accordance with AASB 116 Property,
Plant and Equipment.

(s) Self-insurance

Council does not self-insure.
(t) Intangible assets

IT development and software

Costs incurred in developing products or systems
and costs incurred in acquiring software and licenses
that will contribute to future period financial benefits
through revenue generation and/or cost reduction are
capitalised to software and systems. Costs
capitalised include external direct costs of materials
and service, direct payroll, and payroll related costs
of employees’ time spent on the project. Amortisation
is calculated on a straight line basis over periods
generally ranging from three to five years.

IT development costs include only those costs
directly attributable to the development phase and
are only recognised following completion of technical
feasibility, and where Council has an intention and
ability to use the asset.

(u) Crown reserves

Crown Reserves under Council’'s care and control
are recognised as assets of the Council. While
ownership of the reserves remains with the Crown,
Council retains operational control of the reserves
and is responsible for their maintenance and use in
accordance with the specific purposes to which the
reserves are dedicated.

Improvements on Crown Reserves are also recorded
as assets, while maintenance costs incurred by
Council and revenues relating to the reserves are
recognised within Council’'s Income Statement.
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Rural fire service assets

Under section 119 of the Rural Fire Services Act
1997 (NSW), “all fire fighting equipment purchased
or constructed wholly or from money to the credit of
the Fund is to be vested in the council of the area for
or on behalf of which the fire fighting equipment has
been purchased or constructed”.

Until such time as discussions on this matter have
concluded and the legislation changed, Council will
not recognise rural fire service assets including land,
buildings, plant and vehicles.

Both former Councils had previously recognised
rural fire service assets. Council has decided to
derecognise these assets as at 13 May 2016 and
are shown in note 29 as an adjustment.

(w) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net
of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST
incurred is not recoverable from the taxation
authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the
amount of GST receivable or payable. The net
amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to the
taxation authority is included with other receivables
or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The
GST components of cash flows arising from
investing or financing activities which that are
recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority
are presented as operating cash flows.

(x) New  accounting standards and
interpretations issued not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for the current reporting period and which
have not been applied.

Council does not consider that these standards are
likely to have a material impact on the Council's
future financial statements, financial position,
financial performance or cash flows.

(y) Rounding of amounts
Unless otherwise indicated, amounts in the financial

statements have been rounded off to the nearest
thousand dollars.

(z) Comparative figures

As Council is a new entity, prior year comparatives
are not required in this current year.
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Note 2(a). Council functions/activities — financial information
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$'000

Income, expenses and assets have been directly
attributed to the following functions/activities.
Details of these functions/activities are provided in Note 2(b).

Income from Expenses Operating in(SLZr:dsin Total assets
continuing fr_om. resul_t frpm income from held (current
_ o operations contmgmg contmgmg continuing and non-
Functions/activities operations operations operations current)
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
13/5/16 13/5/16 13/5/16 13/5/16 13/5/16
to 30/6/17 to 30/6/17 to 30/6/17 to 30/6/17 to 30/6/17
Governance 15,004 3,972 11,032 14,742 -
Administration 3,103 5,617 (2,514) 108 48,170
Public order and safety 568 1,364 (796) 351 149
Health 6 141 (135) - -
Environment 3,029 2,504 525 505 13,184
Community services and education 2 50 (48) 2 853
Housing and community amenities 838 1,335 (497) 46 1,323
Water supplies 3,797 3,491 306 48 20,203
Sewerage services 2,748 9,150 (6,402) a7 27,889
Recreation and culture 884 3,046 (2,162) 535 26,327
Mining, manufacturing and construction - 30 (30) - -
Transport and communication 2,864 11,842 (8,978) 1,735 271,093
Economic affairs 778 1,036 (258) 171 6,951
Total functions and activities 33,621 43,578 (9,957) 18,290 416,142
General purpose income * 15,014 - 15,014 7,235 -
Operating result from
continuing operations 48,635 43,578 5,057 25,525 416,142

1. Includes: rates and annual charges (incl. ex-gratia), untied general purpose grants and unrestricted interest and investment income.
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Note 2(b). Council functions/activities — component descriptions
Details relating to the Council’s functions/activities as reported in Note 2(a) are as follows:

GOVERNANCE

Includes costs relating to Council's role as a component of democratic government, including elections,
members’ fees and expenses, subscriptions to local authority associations, meetings of Council and policy-
making committees, public disclosure (e.g. GIPA), and legislative compliance.

ADMINISTRATION
Includes corporate support and other support services, engineering works, and any Council policy compliance.

PUBLIC ORDER AND SAFETY

Includes Council's fire and emergency services levy, fire protection, emergency services, beach control,
enforcement of regulations and animal control.

HEALTH
Includes immunisation, food control, health centres etc.

ENVIRONMENT

Includes noxious plants and insect/vermin control; other environmental protection; solid waste management,
including domestic waste; other waste management; other sanitation; and garbage, street cleaning, drainage
and stormwater management.

COMMUNITY SERVICES AND EDUCATION

Includes administration and education; social protection (welfare); migrant, Aboriginal and other community
services and administration (excluding accommodation — as it is covered under ‘housing and community
amenities’); youth services; aged and disabled persons services; children’s’ services, including family day care;
child care; and other family and children services.

HOUSING AND COMMUNITY AMENITIES

Includes public cemeteries; public conveniences; street lighting; town planning; other community amenities,
including housing development and accommodation for families and children, aged persons, disabled persons,
migrants and Indigenous persons.

WATER SUPPLIES
SEWERAGE SERVICES

RECREATION AND CULTURE

Includes public libraries; museums; art galleries; community centres and halls, including public halls and
performing arts venues; sporting grounds and venues; swimming pools; parks; gardens; lakes; and other
sporting, recreational and cultural services.

MINING, MANUFACTURING AND CONSTRUCTION

Includes building control, quarries and pits, mineral resources, and abattoirs.

TRANSPORT AND COMMUNICATION

Urban local, urban regional, includes sealed and unsealed roads, bridges, footpaths, parking areas, and
aerodromes.

ECONOMIC AFFAIRS

Includes camping areas and caravan parks; tourism and area promotion; industrial development promotion; sale
yards and markets; real estate development; commercial nurseries; and other business undertakings.
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Note 3. Income from continuing operations

Actual
13/5/16
$ 000 Notes to 30/6/17
(a) Rates and annual charges
Ordinary rates
Residential 2,498
Farmland 3,460
Business 715
Total ordinary rates 6,673
Special rates
Town improvement 254
Total special rates 254
Annual charges (pursuant to s.496, s.496A, s.496B, s.501 & $.611)
Domestic waste management services 1,870
Stormwater management services 116
Water supply services 1,498
Sewerage services 2,248
Waste management services (non-domestic) 216
Total annual charges 5,948
TOTAL RATES AND ANNUAL CHARGES 12,875

Council has used the following year valuations provided by the NSW Valuer General in calculating its rates:

Former Cootamundra Shire Council area — 2015
Former Gundagai Shire Council area — 2014
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Note 3. Income from continuing operations (continued)

Actual

13/5/16
$ 000 Notes to 30/6/17
(b) User charges and fees
Specific user charges (per s.502 — specific ‘actual use’ charges)
Water supply services 1,965
Sewerage services 290
Total user charges 2,255
Other user charges and fees
(i) Fees and charges — statutory and regulatory functions (per s.608)
Planning and building regulation 263
Private works — section 67 153
Section 149 certificates (EPA Act) 23
Section 603 certificates 26
Total fees and charges — statutory/regulatory 465
(if) Fees and charges — other (incl. general user charges (per s.608))
Aerodrome 11
Caravan park 50
Cemeteries 312
Community centres 11
Leaseback fees — Council vehicles 43
Library and art gallery 21
Park rents 13
RMS (formerly RTA) charges (state roads not controlled by Council) 2,581
Saleyards 211
Swimming centres 134
Tourism 14
Waste disposal tipping fees 342
Water connection fees 14
Sewer connection fees 7
Sports stadium 15
Other 77
Total fees and charges — other 3,856
TOTAL USER CHARGES AND FEES 6,576
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Financial Statements 2017

Actual
13/5/16
$°'000 Notes to 30/6/17
(c) Interest and investment revenue (including losses)
Interest
— Interest on overdue rates and annual charges (incl. special purpose rates) 70
— Interest earned on investments (interest and coupon payment income) 1,245
Dividend income 35
TOTAL INTEREST AND INVESTMENT REVENUE 1,350
Interest revenue is attributable to:
Unrestricted investments/financial assets:
Overdue rates and annual charges (general fund) 70
General Council cash and investments 1,036
Restricted investments/funds — external:
Water fund operations 123
Sewerage fund operations 121
Total interest and investment revenue recognised 1,350
(d) Other revenues
Rental income — other council properties 187
Legal fees recovery — rates and charges (extra charges) 10
Commissions and agency fees 13
Diesel rebate 106
Insurance claim recoveries 12
Workers comp incentive payments 136
RFS reimbursement 304
Sales — miscellaneous 67
Other 32
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 867
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Note 3. Income from continuing operations (continued)

Actual Actual
13/5/16 13/5/16
to 30/6/17 to 30/6/17
$°000 Operating Capital
(e) Grants
General purpose (untied)
Financial assistance — general component 3,239 -
Financial assistance — local roads component 1,459 -
Pensioners’ rates subsidies — general component 114 -
FAG grants received in advance:
Financial assistance — general component 1,674 -
Financial assistance — local roads component 749 -
Total general purpose 7,235 -
Specific purpose
Pensioners’ rates subsidies:
— Water 48 -
— Sewerage 47 -
— Domestic waste management 77 -
Animal Control 15 -
Community centres - 253
Economic development 35 35
Employment and training programs 5 -
Environmental protection 270 -
FESL implementation 78 -
Flood restoration 519 -
Library — per capita 64 -
LIRS subsidy 123 -
New Council Implementation Fund 5,000 -
Noxious weeds 58 -
Recreation and culture 4 276
Street lighting 45 -
Stronger Communities Fund 1,000 9,000
Transport (roads to recovery) 1,016 -
Transport (other roads and bridges funding) - 218
Waste management — landfills - 14
Waste management — green waste 85 -
Youth services 2 -
Other 3 —
Total specific purpose 8,494 9,796
Total grants 15,729 9,796
Grant revenue is attributable to:
— Commonwealth funding 8,230 4
— State funding 7,461 9,792
— Other funding 38 -
15,729 9,796
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Actual Actual
13/5/16 13/5/16
to 30/6/17 to 30/6/17
$°000 Notes Operating Capital
(f) Contributions
Developer contributions:
(s93 & s94 — EP&A Act, s64 of the LGA):
S 94A — fixed development consent levies 139 48
Total developer contributions 17 139 48
Other contributions:
Recreation and culture 3 59
Roads and bridges 2 -
RMS contributions (regional roads, block grant) 914 36
Total other contributions 919 95
Total contributions 1,058 143
TOTAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS 16,787 9,939
Actual
13/5/16
$ 000 to 30/6/17
(9) Unspent grants and contributions
Certain grants and contributions are obtained by Council on condition
that they be spent in a specified manner:
Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period (former Councils) 1,305
Add: grants and contributions recognised in the current period but not yet spent: 13,853
Less: grants and contributions recognised in a previous reporting period now spent: (955)
Net increase (decrease) in restricted assets during the period 12,898
Unexpended and held as restricted assets 14,203
Comprising:
— Specific purpose unexpended grants 1,585
— Merger implementation funds 3,698
— Stronger communities funds 8,920
14,203
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Actual
13/5/16
$ 000 Notes to 30/6/17
(a) Employee benefits and on-costs
Salaries and wages 10,389
Travel expenses 72
Employee leave entitlements (ELE) 1,095
Superannuation 1,183
Workers’ compensation insurance 372
Fringe benefit tax (FBT) 78
Training costs (other than salaries and wages) 171
Total employee costs 13,360
Less: capitalised costs (1,267)
TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS EXPENSED 12,093
(b) Borrowing costs
(i) Interest bearing liability costs
Interest on loans 185
Total interest bearing liability costs expensed 185
(if) Other borrowing costs
Nil
TOTAL BORROWING COSTS EXPENSED 185
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Actual
13/5/16
$°'000 Notes to 30/6/17
(c) Materials and contracts
Raw materials and consumables 8,214
Contractor and consultancy costs
— Elouera association (waste depot supervision) 226
— Road asphalting contract 1,188
— Planning consultancy 117
— Contractor and consultancy costs — other 103
Auditors remuneration ) 89
Legal expenses:
— Legal expenses: planning and development 1
— Legal expenses: debt recovery 16
— Legal expenses: other 5
TOTAL MATERIALS AND CONTRACTS 9,959
1. Auditor remuneration
a. During the year, the following fees were incurred for services provided by
the Auditor-General:
(i) Audit and other assurance services
— Audit and review of financial statements: Auditor-General 72
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 72
Total Auditor-General remuneration 72
a. During the year, the following fees were incurred for services provided by
the other Council’'s Auditors:
(i) Audit and other assurance services
— Audit and review of financial statements: Council’'s Auditor 17
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 17
Total remuneration of other Council's Auditors 17
Total Auditor remuneration 89
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Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

Actual
13/5/16
$ 000 Notes to 30/6/17
(d) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Depreciation and amortisation
Plant and equipment 1,522
Office equipment 155
Furniture and fittings 53
Land improvements (depreciable) 14
Infrastructure:
— Buildings — non-specialised 96
— Buildings — specialised 527
— Other structures 401
— Roads 4,130
— Bridges 444
— Footpaths 84
— Stormwater drainage 173
— Water supply network 577
— Sewerage network 936
— Swimming pools 93
— Other open space/recreational assets 25
Other assets
— Heritage collections 1
— Other 43
Intangible assets 25 48
Total gross depreciation and amortisation costs 9,322
Less: capitalised costs -
Total depreciation and amortisation costs 9,322
Impairment
Nil
TOTAL DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT COSTS EXPENSED 9,322

page 29



Financial Statements 2017
Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

Actual
13/5/16

$°000 to 30/6/17
(e) Other expenses
Advertising 61
Bad and doubtful debts 1
Bank charges 39
Cleaning 68
Computer software charges 157
Contributions/levies to other levels of government

— Emergency services levy (includes FRNSW, SES, and RFS levies) 483

— Other contributions/levies 30
Administrator fee 157
Amalgamation expenses (excluding employee costs) 794
Committee fees 204
Committee expenses — other (excluding fees above) 7
Donations, contributions and assistance to other organisations (Section 356) 116

— Contribution regional library service 126
Electricity and heating 541
Fair value decrements — |,PP&E 6,934
Fire and emergency services levy (FESL) implementation costs 8
Insurance 668
Postage 55
Printing and stationery 60
Street lighting 137
Stronger community grants paid 1,080
Subscriptions and publications 62
Telephone and communications 89
Tourism expenses (excluding employee costs) 84
Valuation fees 52
Other 6
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 12,019
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Note 5. Gains or losses from the disposal of assets

Actual
13/5/16
$°'000 Notes to 30/6/17
Plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal — plant and equipment 296
Less: carrying amount of plant and equipment assets sold/written off 218
Net gain/(loss) on disposal 78
Real estate assets held for sale
Proceeds from disposal — real estate assets 195
Less: carrying amount of real estate assets sold/written off (32)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal 163
Financial assets
Proceeds from disposal/redemptions/maturities — financial assets 25,638
Less: carrying amount of financial assets sold/redeemed/matured (25,638)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal -
NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS 241
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Note 6a. — Cash assets and Note 6b. — investments

13/5/16
to 30/6/17

Actual

$°'000 Notes Current

13/5/16

to 30/6/17
Actual
Non-current

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6a)

Cash on hand and at bank 283
Cash-equivalent assets *

— Deposits at call 7,272
Total cash and cash equivalents 7,555

Investments (Note 6b)

— Long term deposits 33,826
Total investments 33,826
TOTAL CASH ASSETS, CASH
EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 41,381

! Those investments where time to maturity (from date of purchase) is < 3 mths.

Cash, cash equivalents and investments were
classified at year end in accordance with
AASB 139 as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents

a. ‘At fair value through the profit and loss’ 7,555
Investments

a. ‘Held to maturity’ 33,826
Investments 33,826

Refer to Note 27. Fair value measurement for information regarding the fair value of investments held.
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Note 6¢. Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — details

2017
Actual Actual
$°000 Current  Non-current
Total cash, cash equivalents
and investments 41,381 —
attributable to:
External restrictions (refer below) 14,154 -
Internal restrictions (refer below) 21,744 -
Unrestricted 5,483 -
41,381 —

13/5/16 to 30/6/17 Transferred Transfers

from former  Transfers to from Closing
$ 000 Councils restrictions restrictions balance
Details of restrictions
External restrictions —included in liabilities
Specific purpose unexpended loans — general (A) 1,515 - (1,116) 399
External restrictions —included in liabilities 1,515 - (1,116) 399
External restrictions — other
Developer contributions — general (B) 70 187 (257) -
Specific purpose unexpended grants ©) 1,235 350 - 1,585
Water supplies (D) 3,722 913 - 4,635
Sewerage services (D) 3,803 619 - 4,422
Domestic waste management (D) 476 1,194 - 1,670
Stormwater management (D) 161 85 - 246
Town improvement district 1,414 — (217) 1,197
External restrictions — other 10,881 3,348 (474) 13,755
Total external restrictions 12,396 3,348 (1,590) 14,154

A Loan moneys which must be applied for the purposes for which the loans were raised.

B Development contributions which are not yet expended for the provision of services and amenities in accordance

with contributions plans (refer Note 17).

Grants which are not yet expended for the purposes for which the grants were obtained. (refer Note 1 (b))

D Water, sewerage, domestic waste management (DWM) and other special rates/levies/charges are externally
restricted assets and must be applied for the purposes for which they were raised.

@)
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Financial Statements 2017

Note 6¢. Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — details (continued)

13/5/16 to 30/6/17 Transferred Transfers Actual
from former  Transfers to from Closing
$°000 Councils restrictions restrictions balance
Internal restrictions
Plant and vehicle replacement 640 1,826 - 2,466
Infrastructure replacement 2,190 - (2,190) -
Employees leave entitlement 1,561 - (165) 1,396
Incomplete works 1,065 579 (586) 1,058
Deposits, bonds & retentions 144 - (144) -
Depot consolidation 552 - (552) -
Merger implementation fund - 3,698 - 3,698
Stronger communities fund - 8,920 - 8,920
Prepaid financial assistance grant - 2,423 - 2,423
Bradman's birthplace - 23 - 23
Coolac bypass - 104 - 104
Heritage centre - 6 - 6
Swimming pool pump & equipment - 6 - 6
Waste management 1,706 - (1,706) -
Tree management 132 - (132) -
Special projects 387 35 - 422
Saleyards 267 - 2) 265
Office equipment 164 - (164) -
Gravel pit restorations 63 - (63) -
Future roads and bridges works 369 - (369) -
Development 460 119 - 579
Cootamundra caravan park 57 8 - 65
Aerodrome bitumen resurfacing 308 - (74) 234
Quarries & pit restoration 17 62 - 79
Other 492 — (492) —
Total internal restrictions 10,574 17,809 (6,639) 21,744
TOTAL RESTRICTIONS 22,970 21,157 (8,229) 35,898
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Financial Statements 2017

2017
Actual Actual

$ 000 Notes Current  Non-current
Purpose
Rates and annual charges 594 -
Interest and extra charges 13 -
User charges and fees 1,154 -
Private works 13 -
Accrued revenues

— Interest on investments 388 -
Deferred debtors 5 -
Government grants and subsidies 522 -
Net GST receivable 323 -
Other debtors 143 -
Total 3,155 -
Less: provision for impairment
Other debtors (7) -
Total provision for impairment —receivables (") -
TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES 3,148 —
Externally restricted receivables
Water supply

— Rates and availability charges 52 -
— Other 653 -
Sewerage services

— Rates and availability charges 339 -
— Other 300 -
Domestic waste management 107 -
Town improvement 27 —
Total external restrictions 1,478 -
Internally restricted receivables
Nil
Unrestricted receivables 1,670 -
TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES 3,148 —

Notes on debtors above:

(i) Rates and annual charges outstanding are secured against the property.

(i) Doubtful rates debtors are provided for where the value of the property is less than the debt outstanding.
An allowance for other doubtful debts is made when there is objective evidence that a receivable is impaired.

(iii) Interest was charged on overdue rates and charges at 8.50% (2016 8.50%).

Generally all other receivables are non-interest bearing.

(iv) Please refer to Note 15 for issues concerning credit risk and fair value disclosures.
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Note 8. Inventories and other assets

2017

Actual Actual
$°'000 Notes Current Non-current
(a) Inventories
Inventories at cost
Real estate for resale (refer below) 520 826
Stores and materials 604 -
Trading stock 39 -
Total inventories at cost 1,163 826
TOTAL INVENTORIES 1,163 826
(b) Other assets
Prepayments 1 -
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 1 —
Externally restricted assets
Water
Stores and materials 17 —
Total water 17 —
Total externally restricted assets 17 -
Total unrestricted assets 1,147 826
TOTAL INVENTORIES AND OTHER ASSETS 1,164 826
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$'000

2017

Actual
Current

Actual
Non-current

Other disclosures

(a) Details for real estate development
Residential

Total real estate for resale

Represented by:
Acquisition costs

Total real estate for resale

Movements:

Real estate assets at beginning of the year (former Councils)
— Purchases and other costs

— WDV of sales (expense)

Total real estate for resale

(b) Current assets not anticipated to be settled within the next 12 months
The following inventories and other assets, even though classified
as current are not expected to be recovered in the next 12 months;

Real estate for resale

(c) Inventories recognised as an expense for the year included:

— Stores and materials
— Trading stock

(d) Inventory write downs

520 826
520 826
520 826
520 826
445 826
107 -
(32) -
520 826
2017

171

171

265

3

There were no amounts recognised as an expense relating to the write down of inventory balances

held during the year.

Refer to Note 27. Fair value measurement for information regarding the fair value of other assets held.
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Financial Statements 2017

Asset class IPP&E transferred from former Councils Asset movements during the reporting period
as at 13/5/2016 as at 30/6/2017
. . . Revaluation
Accumulated Additions | Additions | C2™iN9 Depreciation WIP Adjustments | Revaluation | oo e Accumulated
Gross carrying| depreciation Net carrying renewals | new assets \,’alue expense transfers and decrements to equity [ Gross carrying| depreciation Net carrying
amount and amount of disposals transfers to P&L (ARR) amount and amount
$'000 impairment impairment
Capital work in progress 620 - 620 857 98 - - (426) - - - 1,149 - 1,149
Plant and equipment 13,654 7,631 6,023 1,431 - (218) (1,522) 2 - - - 14,323 8,607 5,716
Office equipment 1,477 1,096 381 114 - - (155) - (77) - - 1,503 1,240 263
Furniture and fittings 604 324 280 26 22 - (53) - - - - 653 378 275
Land:
— Operational land 8,963 - 8,963 - 4 - - - - - - 8,967 - 8,967
— Community land 3,646 - 3,646 - - - - - - - - 3,646 - 3,646
— Land under roads (post 30/6/08) 136 - 136 - - - - - - - - 136 - 136
Land improvements — non-depreciable 30 - 30 - - - - - - - - 30 - 30
Land improvements — depreciable 395 182 213 84 - - (14) - - - - 479 196 283
Infrastructure:
— Buildings — non-specialised 7,691 5,127 2,564 45 - - (96) - - - - 7,736 5,223 2,513
— Buildings — specialised 47,509 30,910 16,599 241 1,199 - (527) 118 - - - 49,066 31,436 17,630
— Other structures 15,828 7,549 8,279 206 13 - (401) 51 - - - 16,098 7,950 8,148
— Roads 296,467 87,984 208,483 1,559 - - (4,130) 171 (70,352) - - 227,845 92,114 135,731
— Bridges 43,640 20,515 23,125 126 - - (444) - - - - 43,766 20,959 22,807
— Footpaths 5,077 1,948 3,129 710 20 - (84) - - - - 5,807 2,032 3,775
— Bulk earthworks (non-depreciable) 34,444 - 34,444 274 - - - - 70,352 - - 105,070 - 105,070
— Stormwater drainage 16,940 5,804 11,136 145 31 - (173) 17 - - - 17,133 5,977 11,156
— Water supply network 33,923 20,728 13,195 261 - - (577) 37 - - 1,667 30,569 15,986 14,583
— Sewerage network 53,702 24,792 28,910 828 - - (936) 28 - (6,934) - 47,789 25,893 21,896
— Swimming pools 7,300 3,707 3,593 30 - - (93) 2 - - - 7,332 3,800 3,532
— Other open space/recreational assets 855 264 591 - 374 - (25) - - - - 1,229 289 940
Other assets:
— Heritage collections 40 9 31 - - - () - - - - 40 10 30
— Other 1,721 639 1,082 9 - — (43) — - — — 1,730 682 1,048
TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE,
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIP. 594,662 219,209 375,453 6,946 1,761 (218) (9,274) - (77) (6,934) 1,667 592,096 222,772 369,324

Renewals are defined as the replacement of existing assets (as opposed to the acquisition of new assets).

Refer to Note 27. Fair value measurement for information regarding the fair value of other infrastructure, property, plant and equipment.
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Financial Statements 2017

Note 9b. Externally restricted infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

$'000 Actual
2017
Class of asset Gross carrying Accumulated depn. Net carrying
amount and impairment amount

Water supply
WIP 22 - 22
Plant and equipment 277 163 114
Land

— Operational land 340 - 340
Infrastructure 30,569 15,986 14,583
Total water supply 31,208 16,149 15,059
Sewerage services

Plant and equipment 176 87 89
Land

— Operational land 726 - 726
Buildings 220 65 155
Infrastructure 47,789 25,893 21,896
Total sewerage services 48,911 26,045 22,866
Domestic waste management

Plant and equipment 2,082 1,389 693
Total DWM 2,082 1,389 693
TOTAL RESTRICTED I,PP&E 82,201 43,583 38,618

Note 9c. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment — current year

impairments

Council has recognised no impairment losses during the reporting period nor reversed any prior period losses.
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Financial Statements 2017

2017
Actual Actual
$°'000 Notes Current Non-current
Payables

Goods and services — operating expenditure
Goods and services — capital expenditure
Accrued expenses:

— Borrowings

— Salaries and wages
Advances

Total payables
Income received in advance
Nil

Borrowings

Loans — secured !

Total borrowings

Provisions
Employee benefits:
Annual leave
Long service leave

Sub-total — aggregate employee benefits

Total provisions

TOTAL PAYABLES, BORROWINGS
AND PROVISIONS

(i) Liabilities relating to restricted assets

Externally restricted assets
Water
Sewer

Liabilities relating to externally restricted assets

Internally restricted assets
Nil

Total liabilities relating to restricted assets

Total liabilities relating to unrestricted assets
TOTAL PAYABLES, BORROWINGS AND PROVISIONS

1. N .
Loans are secured over the general rating income of Council

1,486 -
420 -
38 -
425 -
5 _
2,374 —
410 3,049
410 3,049
1,211 -
1,815 271
3,026 271
3,026 271
5,810 3,320
2017
Current Non-current
214 -
39 —
253 —
253 -
5,557 3,320
5,810 3,320

Disclosures on liability interest rate risk exposures, fair value disclosures and security can be found in Note 15.
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Financial Statements 2017

Actual
$'000 2017
(ii) Current liabilities not anticipated to be settled within the next twelve months
The following liabilities, even though classified as current, are not expected
to be settled in the next 12 months.
Provisions — employees benefits 2,025
2,025
a. Employees leave entittements and on-costs represents those benefits accrued and payable
and an estimate of those that will become payable in the future as a result of past service.
Note 11. Statement of cash flows — additional information
(a) Reconciliation of cash assets
Total cash and cash equivalent assets 6a 7,555
Less bank overdraft 10 -
Balance as per the Statement of Cash Flows 7,555
(b) Reconciliation of net operating result
to cash provided from operating activities
Net result from Income Statement 5,057
Adjust for non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation 9,322
Net losses/(gains) on disposal of assets (241)
Losses/(gains) recognised on fair value re-measurements through the P&L:
— Write offs relating to the fair valuation of I,PP&E 6,934
+/- Movement in operating assets and liabilities and other cash items:
Decrease/(increase) in receivables 2,995
Increase/(decrease) in provision for doubtful debts 27)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories (16)
Decrease/(increase) in other assets 168
Increase/(decrease) in payables 550
Increase/(decrease) in accrued interest payable 37
Increase/(decrease) in other accrued expenses payable (1,108)
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities (2,057)
Increase/(decrease) in employee leave entitlements 334
Net cash provided from/(used in)
operating activities from the Statement of Cash Flows 22,280
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Note 11. Statement of cash flows — additional information (continued)

Actual
$°'000 Notes 2017
(c) Non-cash investing and financing activities
Nil
(d) Financing arrangements
(i) Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the

following lines of credit:
Credit cards/purchase cards 71
Total financing arrangements 71
(i) Secured loan liabilities
Loans are secured by a mortgage over future years rate revenue only.

Note 12. Commitments for expenditure
(a) Capital commitments (exclusive of GST)
Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not
recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment
Road paving 97
Total commitments 97
These expenditures are payable as follows:
Within the next year 97
Total payable 97
Sources for funding of capital commitments:
Unrestricted general funds 97
Total sources of funding 97

Details of capital commitments

Council has committed to laying stone paving tiles in Sheridan Street, Gundagai and the project is 50% complete

as at 30 June 2017.
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Note 13a. Statement of performance measurement — indicators (consolidated)

Amounts Indicator Benchmark

$°'000 2017 2017
Local government industry indicators — consolidated
1. Operating performance ratio
Total continuing operating revenue @ excluding capital
grants and contributions less operatllng expenses 1,811 4.71% >0.00%
Total continuing operating revenue @ excluding capital 38,455
grants and contributions
2. 0wn source operating revenue ratio
Total continuing operating revenue @)
excluding _aII grants anq contrlbutlonls 21,668 44.77% >60.00%
Total continuing operating revenue 48,394
3. Unrestricted current ratio

. . (2)
Current zflss.e'té less all exte.r.nal restrlctlo.ns. S 29,873 8.46x >1 5y
Current liabilities less specific purpose liabilities ©* 3,532
4. Debt service cover ratio
Operating result @ pefore capital excluding interest
an.d o!epreC|at|on/|mpa|rment/amortlsatlon 11,318 19.62x S9%
Principal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows) 577
plus borrowing costs (Income Statement)
5. Rates, annual charges, interest and

extra charges outstanding percentage

Rates, annual and extra charges outstanding 607 4.04% <10%
Rates, annual and extra charges collectible 15,039 ' Rural
6. Cash expense cover ratio
Current year's cash and cash equivalents
plus all term deposits %12 41,381 16.35 > 3 mths
Payments from cash flow of operating and 2,530 mths

financing activities

Notes

@ Excludes fair value adjustments and reversal of revaluation decrements,
net gain/(loss) on sale of assets and the net share of interests in joint ventures and associates.

@ Refer Notes 6-8 inclusive.
Also excludes any real estate and land for resale not expected to be sold in the next 12 months.

® Refer to Note 10(a).
® Refer to Note 10(a)(ii) — excludes all payables and provisions not expected to be paid in the next 12 months (incl. ELE).
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Note 13b. Statement of performance measurement — indicators (by fund)

General ® Water Sewer Benchmark
$°000 2017 2017 2017

Local government industry indicators — by fund

1. Operating performance ratio

Total continuing operating revenue @ excluding capital

grants and contributions less operating expenses 3.05% 8.06% 19.36% >0.00%
Total continuing operating revenue @ excluding capital

grants and contributions

2. 0wn source operating revenue ratio

P . 1)
Total c_ontlnumg operating rev.enu.e 36.36% 98.74% 98.29%  =60.00%
excluding all grants and contributions

Total continuing operating revenue @

3. Unrestricted current ratio
Current assets less all external restrictions @
Current liabilities less specific purpose liabilitie

8.46x 25.03x 129.77x >1.5x

s G4

4. Debt service cover ratio
Operating result @ pefore capital excluding interest

>2X

and depreciation/impairment/amortisation 15.47x 0.00 0.00
Principal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows) ' ' '
plus borrowing costs (Income Statement)

5. Rates, annual charges, interest and
extra charges outstanding percentage
Rates, annual and extra charges outstanding <10%
1.92% 3.40% 14.92%
Rates, annual and extra charges collectible Rural

6. Cash expense cover ratio

Current year's cash and cash equivalents

plus all term deposits x12 14.80 19.24 41.98 > 3 mths

Payments from cash flow of operating and mths mths mths
financing activities

Notes

- Refer to Notes at Note 13a(i) above.
®) General fund refers to all of Council’s activities except for its water and sewer activities which are listed separately.
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Note 14. Investment properties

$’'000

Council has not classified any land or buildings as ‘investment properties’.

Note 15. Financial risk management

Risk management

Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including (1) price risk, (2) credit risk, (3) liquidity risk
and (4) interest rate risk.

The Council's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to foreign
currency risk.

Financial risk management is carried out by Council’s finance section under policies approved by the Council.

The fair value of Council’s financial assets and financial liabilities approximates their carrying amount.
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Note 15. Financial risk management (continued)

$’'000

Council’s objective is to maximise its return on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate level of
liquidity and preserving capital.

Council has an investment policy which complies with the Local Government Act 1993 and Minister’'s
investment order. This policy is regularly reviewed by Council and it's staff and an investment report is tabled
before Council on a monthly basis setting out the portfolio breakup and its performance.
The risks associated with the investments held are:
— Price risk — the risk that the capital value of Investments may fluctuate due to changes in market prices,
whether there changes are caused by factors specific to individual financial instruments or their issuers

or are caused by factors affecting similar instruments traded in a market.

— Interest rate risk — the risk that movements in interest rates could affect returns and income.

Credit risk — the risk that the investment counterparty will not complete their obligations particular to a
financial instrument, resulting in a financial loss to Council — be it of a capital or income nature.

Council manages these risks (amongst other measures) by diversifying its portfolio and only purchasing
investments with high credit ratings or capital guarantees.

(a) Market risk — price risk and interest rate risk

The following represents a summary of the sensitivity of Council’'s Income Statement and accumulated surplus
(for the reporting period) due to a change in either the price of a financial asset or the interest rates applicable.

It is assumed that the change in interest rates would have been constant throughout the reporting period.

Increase of values/rates Decrease of values/rates
13/5/16/to 30/6/17 Profit Equity Profit Equity
Possible impact of a 1% movement in interest rates 338 338 (338) (338)
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Note 15. Financial risk management (continued)

$°000
(b) Credit risk

Council’'s major receivables comprise (i) rates and annual charges and (ii) user charges and fees.

The major risk associated with these receivables is credit risk — the risk that debts due and payable to Council
may not be repaid in full.

Council manages this risk by monitoring outstanding debt and employing stringent debt recovery procedures.
It also encourages ratepayers to pay their rates by the due date through incentives.

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council to secure a charge over the land
relating to the debts — that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. Council is also able to charge interest
on overdue rates and annual charges at higher than market rates which further encourages the payment of debt.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual customers,
specific industry sectors and/or regions.

The level of outstanding receivables is reported to Council monthly and benchmarks are set and monitored for
acceptable collection performance.

Council makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as required.
There are no material receivables that have been subjected to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.

A profile of Council’s receivables credit risk at balance date follows:

2017 2017
Rates and
annual Other

charges receivables
(i) Ageing of receivables — %

Current (not yet overdue) 78% 86%
Overdue 22% 14%
100% 100%
Rates and

(if) Ageing of receivables — value annual Other
Rates and annual charges Other receivables charges receivables
Current Current 462 2,199
< 1 year overdue 0 — 30 days overdue 102 125
1 — 2 years overdue 31 - 60 days overdue 24 107
2 — 5 years overdue 61 — 90 days overdue 6 103
> 5 years overdue > 91 days overdue — 27
594 2,561

(iii) Movement in provision for impairment 2017

of receivables

Balance at the beginning of the year (former Councils) 34
— amounts already provided for and written off this year ()
— previous impairment losses reversed (26)
Balance at the end of the year 7
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Note 15. Financial risk management (continued)

$’'000

(c) Liquidity risk

Payables and borrowings are both subject to liquidity risk — the risk that insufficient funds may be on hand
to meet payment obligations as and when they fall due.

Council manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an
adequate cash buffer.

Payment terms can (in extenuating circumstances) also be extended and overdraft facilities utilised as required.

The contractual undiscounted cash outflows (ie. principal and interest) of Council’'s payables and borrowings
are set out in the maturity table below:

$°000 Subject Total Actual
to no payable in: cash carrying
maturity <1 Year 1-2 Yrs 2-3Yrs 3-4Yrs 4-5Yrs >5Yrs outflows values

13/5/16(to 30/6/17

Trade/other payables - 2,341 - - - - - 2,341 2,374
Loans and advances - 559 559 559 559 559 1,110 3,905 3,459
Total financial liabilities — 2,900 559 559 559 559 1,110 6,246 5,833

Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk — the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely
affect funding costs and debt servicing requirements. Council manages this risk through the diversification of
borrowing types, maturities and interest rate structures.

The following interest rates were applicable 2017
to Council’'s borrowings at balance date: Carrying Average
value interest rate
Trade/other payables 2,374 0.00%
Loans and advances — fixed interest rate 3,459 4.73%
5,833

Note 16. Material budget variations

In accordance with the Supplementary Code 25, this note is not required for new Councils.

page 48



Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 17. Statement of developer contributions

Financial Statements 2017
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Council recovers contributions, raises levies and enters into planning agreements on development works that are subject to a development consent issued by Council.

All contributions must be spent/utilised for the specific purpose they were levied and any interest applicable to unspent funds must be attributed to remaining funds.

The following tables detail the receipt, interest and use of the above contributions and levies and the value of all remaining funds which are ‘restricted’ in their future use.

SUMMARY OF CONTRIBUTIONS AND LEVIES

S94 Funds Contributions Interest Expenditure Internal Held as Clij:t‘:::glve
PURPOSE transferred from received during the year earned during borrowing restricted borrowings
former Councils Cash Non-cash in year year (to)/from asset due/(payable)

Roads 3 - 3) —
S94 contributions — under a plan 3 - 3) -
S94A levies — under a plan 67 187 (254) -
Total S94 revenue under plans 70 187 (257) -
Total contributions 70 187 (257) -
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S94 CONTRIBUTIONS — UNDER A PLAN

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 2014 (former Cootamundra)

S94 Funds Contributions Interest Expenditure Internal Held as Cumulative
PURPOSE transferred from received during the year earned during borrowing restricted b(;rr]rtc?\:\:;slgs
former Councils Cash Non-cash in year year (to)/from asset due/(payable)
Roads 3 - - — (3) - -
Total 3 - - - (3) - -
S94A LEVIES — UNDER A PLAN
CONTRIBUTION PLAN FOR OTHER DEVELOPMENTS (former Cootamundra)
S94 Funds Contributions Interest Expenditure Internal Held as Cumulative
PURPOSE transferred from received during the year earned during borrowing restricted b(;rr]rtc?\:\:;slgs
former Councils Cash Non-cash in year year (to)/from asset due/(payable)
Community facilities 67 48 - - (115) - -
Total 67 48 - - (115) - -
CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 2006 (former Gundagai)
S94 Funds Contributions Interest Expenditure Internal Held as Cgmulative
PURPOSE transferred ffom received during the year earned during borrowing restricted b(;rr]rts\:\:;r?gs
former Councils Cash Non-cash in year year (to)/from asset due/(payable)
Community facilities - 139 - - (139) - -
Total - 139 - - (139) — —

page 50




Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Financial Statements 2017

Note 18. Contingencies and other assets/liabilities not recognised

$’'000

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for
recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but
their knowledge and disclosure is considered relevant
to the users of Council’s financial report.

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED:
1. Guarantees

(i) Defined benefit superannuation
contribution plans

Council participates in an employer-sponsored
defined benefit superannuation scheme, and makes
contributions as determined by the superannuation
scheme’s trustees.

Member councils bear responsibility of ensuring there
are sufficient funds available to pay out the required
benefits as they fall due.

The schemes most recent full actuarial review
indicated that the net assets of the scheme were
not sufficient to meet the accrued benefits of the
schemes defined benefit member category with
member councils required to make significantly
higher contributions in future years.

The Local Government Superannuation Scheme
however is unable to provide Council with an accurate
estimate of its share of the net deficit and accordingly
Council has not recorded any net liability from it's
defined benefit scheme obligations in accordance
with AASB 119.

Future contributions made to the defined benefit
scheme to rectify the net deficit position will be
recognised as an expense when they become
payable — similar to the accounting for defined
contributions plans.

(i) Statewide Limited

Council is a member of Statewide Mutual, a mutual
pool scheme providing liability insurance to local
government.

Membership includes the potential to share in either
the net assets or liabilities of the fund depending on
its past performance. Council’s share of the net
assets or liabilities reflects Council’s contributions to
the pool and the result of insurance claims within
each of the fund years.

The future realisation and finalisation of claims
incurred but not reported to 30/6 this year may result
in future liabilities or benefits as a result of past
events that Council will be required to fund or share
in respectively.

(iii) StateCover Limited

Council is a member of StateCover Mutual Limited
and holds a partly paid share in the entity.

StateCover is a company providing workers
compensation insurance cover to the NSW local
government industry and specifically Council.

Council has a contingent liability to contribute further
equity in the event of the erosion of the company’s
capital base as a result of the company’s past
performance and/or claims experience or as a result
of any increased prudential requirements from APRA.

These future equity contributions would be required
to maintain the company’s minimum level of net
assets in accordance with its licence requirements.

(iv) Other guarantees

Council has provided no other guarantees other than
those listed above.
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Note 18. Contingencies and other assets/liabilities not recognised (continued)

$°000

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED (continued):
2. Other liabilities

(i) Third party claims

The Council is involved from time to time in various
claims incidental to the ordinary course of business
including claims for damages relating to its services.

Council believes that it is appropriately covered
for all claims through its insurance coverage and
does not expect any material liabilities to eventuate.

(ii) S94 plans

Council levies section 94/94A contributions upon
various development across the Council area through
the required contributions plans.

As part of these plans, Council has received funds
for which it will be required to expend the monies in
accordance with those plans.

As well, these plans indicate proposed future
expenditure to be undertaken by Council, which will
be funded by making levies and receipting funds in
future years or where a shortfall exists by the use of
Council's general funds.

These future expenses do not yet qualify as liabilities
as of the reporting date, but represent Council’s
intention to spend funds in the manner and timing
set out in those plans.

Note 19. Interests in other entities

ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED:
(i) Land under roads
As permitted under AASB 1051, Council has elected

not to bring to account land under roads that it
owned or controlled up to and including 30/6/08.

Council has no interest in any controlled entities, joint arrangements or associates.
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Note 20. Retained earnings, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting
policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors

Actual
$°000 Notes 2017
(a) Retained earnings
Movements in retained earnings were as follows:
a. Net result for the year 405,345
Balance at end of the reporting period 405,345
(b) Revaluation reserves
(i) Reserves are represented by:
— Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve 1,667
Total 1,667
(ii) Reconciliation of movements in reserves:
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
— Revaluations for the year 9(a) 1,667
— Balance at end of year 1,667
TOTAL VALUE OF RESERVES 1,667

(iii) Nature and purpose of reserves
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
— The infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation

reserve is used to record increments/decrements of non-current
asset values due to their revaluation.

(c) Correction of error/s relating to a previous reporting period

Council made no correction of errors during the current reporting period.

(d) Voluntary changes in accounting policies

Council made no voluntary changes in any accounting policies during the year.
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Note 21. Financial result and financial position by fund

Income Statement by fund Actual Actual Actual
13/5/16 13/5/16 13/5/16
$ 000 to 30/6/17 to 30/6/17 to 30/6/17
Continuing operations Water Sewer General’
Income from continuing operations
Rates and annual charges 1,530 2,272 9,073
User charges and fees 2,085 308 4,183
Interest and investment revenue 123 121 1,106
Other revenues 11 - 856
Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes 48 a7 16,692
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes - - 9,939
Other income
Net gains from disposal of assets - - 241
Total income from continuing operations 3,797 2,748 42,090

Expenses from continuing operations

Employee benefits and on-costs 509 447 11,137
Borrowing costs - - 185
Materials and contracts 1,142 649 8,168
Depreciation and amortisation 600 953 7,769
Impairment - - -
Other expenses 1,240 7,101 3,678
Net losses from the disposal of assets - - -
Total expenses from continuing operations 3,491 9,150 30,937
Operating result from continuing operations 306 (6,402) 11,153

Discontinued operations

Net profit/(loss) from discontinued operations -

Net operating result for the year 306 (6,402) 11,153

Gain on local government amalgamation

Assets and liabilities transferred from former councils 7,474 8,054 384,760
Net result for the year 7,780 1,652 395,913
Net result attributable to each council fund 7,780 1,652 395,913

Net operating result for the year before grants
and contributions provided for capital purposes 306 (6,402) 1,214

! General fund refers to all Council’s activities other than Water and Sewer.
NB. All amounts disclosed above are gross — that is, they include internal charges and recoveries made between
the funds.
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Statement of Financial Position by fund Actual Actual Actual
$'000 2017 2017 2017
ASSETS Water Sewer  General*
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents - - 7,555
Investments 4,635 4,422 24,769
Receivables 705 639 1,804
Inventories 17 - 1,146
Other — — 1
Total current assets 5,357 5,061 35,275

Non-current assets

Inventories - - 826
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 15,059 22,866 331,399
Investments accounted for using the equity method - - -
Intangible assets - - 299
Other — — —
Total non-current assets 15,059 22,866 332,524
TOTAL ASSETS 20,416 27,927 367,799
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Payables 214 39 2,121
Income received in advance - - -
Borrowings - - 410
Provisions — — 3,026
Total current liabilities 214 39 5,557

Non-current liabilities

Payables - - -
Income received in advance - - -
Borrowings - - 3,049
Provisions — — 271
Total non-current liabilities - - 3,320
TOTAL LIABILITIES 214 39 8,877
Net assets 20,202 27,888 358,922
EQUITY

Retained earnings 18,535 27,888 358,922
Revaluation reserves 1,667 - -
Other reserves — - -
Total equity 20,202 27,888 358,922

! General Fund refers to all Council’s activities other than Water and Sewer.
NB. All amounts disclosed above are gross — that is, they include internal receivables and payables between the funds.
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Council did not classify any non-current assets or disposal groups as ‘held for sale’.

Note 23. Events occurring after the reporting date

Events that occur between the end of the reporting period (30 June 2017) and the date when the financial
statements are ‘authorised for issue’ have been taken into account in preparing these statements.

Council has adopted the date of receipt of the Auditors’ Report as the applicable ‘authorised for issue’ date
relating to these General Purpose Financial Statements.

Accordingly, the ‘authorised for issue’ date is 30/10/17.
Events that occur after the reporting period represent one of two types:
(i) Events that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting period

These financial statements (and the figures therein) incorporate all ‘adjusting events’ that provided evidence
of conditions that existed at 30 June 2017.

(ii) Events that provide evidence of conditions that arose after the reporting period

These financial statements (and figures therein) do not incorporate any ‘non-adjusting events’ that have
occurred after 30 June 2017 and which are only indicative of conditions that arose after 30 June 2017.

Council is unaware of any material or significant ‘non-adjusting events’ that should be disclosed.

Note 24. Discontinued operations

Council has not classified any of its operations as ‘discontinued’.
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Note 25. Intangible assets

Actual
$°'000 2017
Intangible assets represent identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance.
Intangible assets are as follows:
Opening values (former Councils):
Gross book value 331
Accumulated amortisation (61)
Accumulated impairment -
Net book value — opening balance (former Councils) 270
Movements for the year
— Net transfers from |,PP&E 77
— Amortisation charges (48)
Closing values:
Gross book value (30/6) 420
Accumulated amortisation (30/6) (121)
TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS — NET BOOK VALUE * 299
- The net book value of intangible assets represent:
— Software 299

299

Note 26. Reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration liabilities

Council has various garbage centres, transfer stations and gravel pits situated around the community.
These all have useful lives, which on being reached will result in Council having to reinstate these areas
through restoration and remediation works.

These future liabilities have however, not been brought to account due to;

— the remaining useful lives of these assets being estimated at beyond 20 years and accordingly the effects of
discounting the future cash outflows to present values makes the measurement unreliable,

— preliminary estimates of the individual amounts required to undertake the future restoration works do not
materially affect either Council’s financial results or financial position as at 30/6/17.

Accordingly, no provision amounts have been brought to account in these financial statements for such future
reinstatement and restoration costs.

page 57



Financial Statements 2017

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 27. Fair value measurement

$’'000

The Council measures the following asset and liability classes at fair value on a recurring basis:
— Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with various accounting standards for
either recognition and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a
‘level’ in the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

(1) The following table presents all assets and liabilities that have been measured and recognised at
fair values:

[ Fair value measurement hierarchy |

13/5/16 to 30/6/17 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Quoted Significant Significant
Recurring fair value measurements prices in observable  unobservable
active mkts inputs inputs

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress - - 1,149 1,149
Plant & equipment - 5,716 - 5,716
Office equipment - 263 - 263
Furniture & fittings - 275 - 275
Operational land - 8,967 - 8,967
Community land - - 3,646 3,646
Land under roads (post 30/6/08) - - 136 136
Land improvements - non-depreciable - - 30 30
Land improvements - depreciable - - 283 283
Non-specialised buildings - - 2,513 2,513
Specialised buildings - - 17,630 17,630
Other structures - - 8,148 8,148
Roads - - 135,731 135,731
Bridges - - 22,807 22,807
Footpaths - - 3,775 3,775
Bulk earthworks - - 105,070 105,070
Stormwater drainage - - 11,156 11,156
Water supply network - - 14,583 14,583
Sewerage network - - 21,896 21,896
Swimming pools - - 3,532 3,532
Other open space/recreational assets - - 940 940
Heritage collections - - 30 30
Other assets - 1,048 1,048

I
=
ol
N
N
=N

Total infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 354,103 369,324
(2) Transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchies

During the year, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchies for recurring fair
value measurements.
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Note 27. Fair value measurement (continued)

(3) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values

Where Council is unable to derive fair valuations using quoted market prices of identical assets (i.e. level 1
inputs), Council instead utilises a spread of both observable inputs (level 2 inputs) and unobservable inputs
(level 3 inputs).

The fair valuation techniques Council has employed while utilising level 2 and level 3 inputs are as follows:
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Level 2 Inputs

Plant & equipment

It is considered that there is a liquid second hand market for Council’s plant & equipment, however, there is
subjectivity of prices in this market dependant on the age and condition of the equipment being sold. Plant &
equipment are valued at written down value and disclosed at fair value.

Office equipment & Furniture & fittings

There is a liquid second hand market for these type of assets, but the market is not liquid enough to qualify the
assets as valued at level 1. These assets typically have very short useful lives, are held to the end of their
economic life and have no residual value. The written down value reflects their value in use rather than their
market value and are therefore valued at written down value and disclosed at fair value.

Operational land

There is an active liquid market for most of Council’s operational land, however, the subjectivity of pricing has
resulted in this land to be classified as level 2. Operational land has been valued by an external valuer, taking
into consideration the land characteristics, location, zoning, proximity to services and comparable sales.
Level 3 Inputs

Capital works in progress

These assets are valued at the cost of construction of the asset. As there is no active market for any of the
infrastructure assets that are partially constructed, the only valuation is costs, or inputs to the construction
work.

Community land

Community land was valued using the NSW Valuer General’s valuations as at 30 June 2014. This method has
no market observable inputs and may or may not align with the market value of the land.

Land under roads

Council has elected to only recognise land under roads which was acquired after 30 June 2008. There is no
market for land that is currently used for road or road reserve purposes. The NSW Valuer General’s valuations
of neighbouring land was used to calculate the value of land under roads.

Land improvements

There is no active market for sale of land improvements, therefore land improvements are valued at written
down value and disclosed at fair value.
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Buildings & Other structures

Buildings and other structures were valued using a combination of external valuers and internal professional
Council staff. Non-specialised building are valued using a market based approach where an active market
could be identified. Other buildings and structures are valued using depreciated replacement cost taking into
account the useful lives and condition of the asset.

Roads, Bridges, Footpaths, Bulk earthworks & Stormwater drainage

Roads assets were valued using a combination of external valuers and internal professional Council staff. The
assets were componentised and valued at the depreciated replacement cost method, taking into account unit
rates, useful lives and asset condition.

Water supply network & Sewerage network

Council's water and sewer assets were valued by external valuers as at 30 June 2017. The value represents
the depreciated replacement cost, taking into account the NSW Office of Water’s reference rates, useful lives,
dimension, specification and asset condition.

Heritage collection

These assets include memorabilia and collectibles and are valued at written down value based upon cost and
are disclosed at fair value.

There were no changes in valuation techniques from prior years.
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(4). Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

a. The following tables present the changes in level 3 fair value asset classes.

Balance on transfer from former Councils
Transfers from/(to) another asset class
Purchases (GBV)

Closing balance — 30/6/17

Balance on transfer from former Councils
Transfers from/(to) another asset class
Purchases (GBV)

Depreciation and impairment

Closing balance — 30/6/17

Capital Community Land Land
Work in Land Under Improv'mt
Progress Roads Non-deprec Total
620 3,646 136 30 4,432
(426) - - - (426)
955 - - - 955
1,149 3,646 136 30 4,961
Land Buildings Buildings Other
Improv'mt Non Specialised  Structures
Deprec Specialised Total
213 2,564 16,599 8,279 27,655
- - 118 51 169
84 45 1,440 219 1,788
(14) (96) (527) (401) (1,038)
283 2,513 17,630 8,148 28,574
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(4). Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3) (continued)

a. The following tables present the changes in level 3 fair value asset classes. (continued)

Roads Bridges Footpaths Bulk
Earthworks Total
Balance on transfer from former Councils 208,483 23,125 3,129 34,444 269,181
Transfers from/(to) another asset class (70,181) - - 70,352 171
Purchases (GBV) 1,559 126 730 274 2,689
Depreciation and impairment (4,130) (444) (84) - (4,658)
Closing balance — 30/6/17 135,731 22,807 3,775 105,070 267,383

Stormwater Water Sewerage All Other

Drainage Supply Network I,PP&E
Network Total
Balance on transfer from former Councils 11,136 13,195 28,910 5,297 58,538
Transfers from/(to) another asset class 17 37 28 2 84
Purchases (GBV) 176 261 828 413 1,678
Depreciation and impairment (173) (577) (936) (162) (1,848)
FV gains — other comprehensive income - 1,667 - - 1,667
FV loss — Income Statement - - (6,934) - (6,934)
Closing balance — 30/6/17 11,156 14,583 21,896 5,550 53,185
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(4). Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

b. Significant unobservable valuation inputs used (for level 3 asset classes) and their relationship to

fair value.

The following table summarises the quantitative information relating to the significant unobservable inputs
used in deriving the various level 3 asset class fair values.

I,PP&E
Class Fair
value
(30/6/17)
$'000

Capital works in 1,149
progress
Community land 3,646

Land under 136
roads

Land 313
improvements

Buildings & 33,811

other structure
Roads assets 278,539
Water & sewer 36,479

Heritage 30
collection

(5). Highest and best use

Valuation technique/s

Cost of construction

Land values obtained by the NSW
Valuer General
Land values obtained by the NSW
Valuer General

Depreciated replacement cost used to
approximate fair value

Combination of market value and
depreciated replacement cost used to
approximate fair value

Depreciated replacement cost used to
approximate fair value

Depreciated replacement cost used to
approximate fair value

Depreciated replacement cost used to
approximate fair value

Unobservable inputs

Cost of materials, wages, plant

VG land value, land area, rate per sq
metre

Adjoining land values based upon VG
value, rate per sq metre

Purchase price, useful life

Cost, unit rates, useful life, asset
condition

Unit rates, useful life, asset condition,
replacement cost

Unit rates, useful life, asset condition,
replacement cost

Cost, useful life

All of Council’'s non-financial assets are considered to being utilised for their highest and best use.
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Note 28. Related party disclosures

In accordance with the Supplementary Code 25, this note is not required for new Councils.

Note 29. Local Government amalgamation

$°'000 Notes

The local government (Council Amalgamations) Proclamation 2016

(‘the Proclamation’) under the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) transferred the
assets and liabilities of the former councils Cootamundra Shire Council and Gundagai
Shire Council to Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council as at 12 May 2016.

Actual
13/5/16
Gain on local government amalgamation to 30/6/17
Assets and liabilities transferred from former councils a 402,167
Accounting policy adjustments b (1,879)
400,288

a. Assets and liabilities transferred from former councils
(i) Carrying amount of assets and liabilities transferred
Assets and liabilities of:

— Cootamundra Shire Council
— Gundagai Shire Council

have been recognised by the Council at the carrying amount recorded by the former council.

Council believes the carrying amounts are not materially different from their fair values as at the date of
transfer 12 May 2016.

The fair value of the net assets has been shown as a gain on local government amalgamation in the income
statement and further information is provided on the next page.
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Note 29. Local Government amalgamation (continued)

$’'000

a. Assets and liabilities transferred from former councils (continued)

(i) Carrying amount of assets and liabilities transferred (continued)

Gain on local

Cootamundra Gundagai government

Shire Council ~ Shire Council amalgamation
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,264 2,435 3,699
Investments 16,094 7,900 23,994
Receivables 3,072 3,116 6,188
Inventories 437 635 1,072
Other 4 53 57
Non-current assets classified as ‘held for sale’ - - -
Total current assets 20,871 14,139 35,010
Non-current assets
Investments - - -
Receivables 5 - 5
Inventories 826 - 826
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 200,417 175,036 375,453
Investments accounted for using the equity method - - -
Intangible assets 270 - 270
Other — — —
Total non-current assets 201,518 175,036 376,554
TOTAL ASSETS 222,389 189,175 411,564
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables (excluding bank overdraft) 2,455 1,339 3,794
Bank overdraft - - -
Income received in advance - - -
Borrowings 133 259 392
Provisions 2,015 1,543 3,558
Total current liabilities 4,603 3,141 7,744
Non-current liabilities
Payables - - -
Income received in advance - - -
Borrowings 966 2,493 3,459
Provisions 28 45 73
Total non-current liabilities 994 2,538 3,532
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,597 5,679 11,276
Net assets transferred 216,792 183,496 400,288
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Note 29. Local Government amalgamation (continued)

$°000
(if) Adjustments between former council carrying amount of assets and fair values recognised

The following adjustments were made to the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities received as part of
the amalgamation in order to recognise them at fair value at the proclamation date.

Actual
Adjustments made to recognise net assets at fair value 2017
Derecognition of joint venture - Riverina Regional Library (212)
Review of restoration provision - Gravel pits Gundagai 185
Derecognition of RFS assets (1,740)
Derecognition of Statecover shares - noted as contingent asset (112)
Total adjustments (1,879)

(iii) Rates and Non-Reciprocal Grants income

The rates and non-reciprocal grants revenue for the period from 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2016
were recorded in the financial statements of the former councils in accordance with AASB 1004 Contributions.

The assets transferred to Council include a portion of rates and non-reciprocal grants that were received but
related to the period after the former councils ceased to exist.
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 30. Council information and contact details

Principal place of business:
81 Wallendoon Street
Cootamundra NSW 2590

Contact details

Mailing address:

PO Box 420
Cootamundra NSW 2590

Telephone: 02 6940 2100
Facsimile: 02 6940 2127

Officers
GENERAL MANAGER
Allen Dwyer

RESPONSIBLE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
Kate Monaghan

PUBLIC OFFICER
Kate Monaghan

AUDITORS

Audit Office of New South Wales
GPO Box 12

Sydney NSW 2001

Other information
ABN: 46 211 642 339

Opening hours:
9am - 5pm Monday to Friday

Internet: www.cgrc.nsw.gov.au
Email: mail@cgrc.nsw.gov.au

Elected members
MAYOR
Abb McAlister

COUNCILLORS
Charlie Sheahan
Craig Stewart
David Graham
Dennis Palmer
Doug Phillips

Gil Kelly

Leigh Bowden
Penny Nicholson
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on the general purpose financial statements

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

To the Councillors of Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council
(the Council), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, the income
statement, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of

cash flows for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017, notes comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the Statement by Councillors and

Management.
In my opinion,
. the Council’s accounting records have been kept in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Government Act 1993, Chapter 13, Part 3, Division 2 (the Division)
. the financial statements:
- have been presented, in all material respects, in accordance with the requirements of this
Division

- are consistent with the Council’s accounting records

- present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Council as at 30 June
2017, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the period 13 May 2016 to 30
June 2017 in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards

. all information relevant to the conduct of the audit has been obtained

. no material deficiencies in the accounting records or financial statements have come to light
during the audit.

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the
standards are described in the ‘Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of my report.

I am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the:

. Australian Auditing Standards

. Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants’ (APES 110).

Level 15, 1 Margaret Street, Sydney NSW 2000 | GPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001 | t02 9275 7101 | f02 9275 7179 | e mail@audit.nsw.gov.au | audit.nsw.gov.au
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I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.

Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

. providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an
Auditor-General

. mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of councils

. precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services.

| believe the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

The Councillors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local Government Act 1993, and for such
internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Councillors must assess the Council’s ability to continue as a
going concern except where the Council will be dissolved or amalgamated by an Act of Parliament.
The assessment must disclose, as applicable, matters related to going concern and the
appropriateness of using the going concern basis of accounting.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to:

. obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
. issue an Independent Auditor’'s Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take based
on the financial statements.

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board website at: www.auasb.gov.au/auditors responsibilities/ar3.pdf.
The description forms part of my auditor’s report.
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My opinion does not provide assurance:

. that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically

. on the Original Budget information included in the Income Statement, Statement of Cash Flows,
Note 2(a) and Note 16 budget variation explanations

. on the attached Special Schedules

. about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial
statements on any website where they may be presented

. about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the financial statements.

Chris Clayton

Director, Financial Audit Services

30 October 2017
SYDNEY
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OF NEW SOUTH WALES

Councillor Abb McAlister Contact: Chris Clayton
Mayor

. . . Phone no: 02 9275 7248
Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

PO Box 420 our ref: D1728514/1734
COOTAMUNDRA NSW 2590

30 October 2017

Dear Mayor

Report on the Conduct of the Audit
for the period 13 May 2016 — 30 June 2017
Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

I have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Cootamundra Gundagai Regional
Council (the Council) for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017 as required by s415 of the Local
Government Act 1993 (the Act).

| expressed an unmodified opinion on the Council’s general purpose financial statements.

This Report on the Conduct of the Audit (the Report) for the Council for the period ended 30 June
2017 is issued in accordance with section 417 of the Act. This Report should be read in conjunction
with my audit opinion on the general purpose financial statements issued under section 417(2) of the
Act.

INCOME STATEMENT

Operating result

Adjusted
2017 Original Variance
Budget”
$m $m %
Rates and annual
charges revenue 12.9 12.6 25 1
User Charges and fees 6.6 5.7 147 *
Grant d
rants an 26.7 24.9 721
contributions revenue
Materials and Contract 10.0 88 13.7 t

expenses

Level 15, 1 Margaret Street, Sydney NSW 2000 | GPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001 | t02 9275 7100 | f02 9275 7200 | e mail@audit.nsw.gov.au | audit.nsw.gov.au
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Our insights inform and challenge government to improve outcomes for citizens OF NEW SOUTH WALES
Adjusted
2017 Original Variance
Budget”
$m $m %
Operating result
for the period o 1o (57.4) §
Net operating result
perating (4.9) 0.2 (>1,000.0) &

N

before capital amounts

The adjusted original budget reflects the original approved budget (for a 12-month reporting period) plus the approved budget variation for additional 7
weeks to reflect the extended reporting period. The budget figures are unaudited. These have been included as a comparison tool because the Council

has no prior year figures.

Commentary on variances against Council’'s adjusted original budget include:

o
o

Rates and annual charges revenue showed minimal variation from the adjusted original budget.

User charges and fees revenue was higher than adjusted original budget due to Council
performing more work on State-owned roads that were damaged by heavy rain and flooding.
That work was funded by Roads and Maritime Services (RMS). Income for the 2016-17 financial
period of $2.6 million was $1.8 million more than the combined 2015-16 income of the former

councils.

Grants and contributions revenue was higher than adjusted original budget due to Council
receiving $2.4 million of 2017-18 financial assistance grants from the Commonwealth

Government in 2016-17.

Materials and contract expenses was higher than adjusted original budget due to the additional

RMS works mentioned above.

The net operating result was generated mainly within General fund. Note 21 reported surpluses in the
General fund of $11.2 million and the Water Fund of $0.3 million, offset by a $6.4 million deficit in the
Sewer Fund. The Sewer Fund deficit was due to the asset revaluation of the sewer network that
resulted in a $6.9 million write down in the value of sewer infrastructure.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The 2016-17 financial period saw a
net cash inflow of $3.9 million
generated. Council also received
$3.7 million of cash transferred in on
amalgamation resulting in a closing
balance of cash and cash equivalents
of $7.6 million.

At 30 June 2017 Council also held
investments of $33.8 million for a
combined cash, cash equivalents and
investments total of $41.4 million.

$m

Statement of Cash Flows
50 r

40
30
20 |

o LI
2017

Year ended 30 June
= Net cash flow Cash, cash equivalents and investments
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FINANCIAL POSITION

Cash and Investments

Restricted Cash and 2017 Adjusted Commentary
Investments Original
Budget
$m $m
External restrictions 14.2 10.6 Externally restricted balances include unexpended

loans, grants, developer contributions water, sewer and

Internal restrictions 21.7 8.3 .
domestic waste management charges.

Unrestricted 5.5 3.7 Balances are internally restricted due to Council policy
or decisions for forward plans including works program.
Major variances to the adjusted original budget include:

Cash and investments 41.4 22.6

O restricting $12.6 million of unexpended merger
implementation and ‘stronger communities’ funds
received from the State Government

O restricting $2.4 million advanced receipt of 2017-18
financial assistance grants from the
Commonwealth Government in 2016-17.

Unrestricted balances provide liquidity for day-to-day
operations.

Debt

At 30 June 2017, Council had external borrowings of $3.5 million. Loans are secured over the general
rating income of Council.

PERFORMANCE RATIOS

The definition of each ratio analysed below (except for the ‘building and infrastructure renewals ratio’)
is included in Note 13 of the Council’s audited general purpose financial statements. The ‘building and
infrastructure renewals ratio’ is defined in Council’s unaudited Special Schedule 7.

Operating performance ratio

Council’s operating performance ratio

Operating performance ratio
exceeded the industry benchmark.

Advanced receipt of 2017-18 financial [
assistance grant instalments and -
additional amalgamation grants Ratio
contributed to this result. %

The ‘operating performances ratio’
measures how well council contained
operating expenditure within operating
revenue (excluding capital grants and 2017
contributions, fair value adjustments,
and reversal of revaluation
decrements). The benchmark set by mmmm Operating performance ratio Industry benchmark > 0%
the Office of Local Government (OLG)

is greater than zero per cent.

O P N W b~ O
T

Year ended 30 June
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Own source operating revenue ratio

The increased level of grants and

iy ) Own source operating revenue ratio
contributions decreases Council’s own

source operating revenue ratio. This 100 r
has contributed to Council’s ratio 80 |
being below the benchmark level. Ratio gg |
The ‘own source operating revenue %
ratio’ measures council’s fiscal 40
flexibility and the degree to which it 20 |
relies on external funding sources
such as operating grants and 0 '
contributions. The benchmark set by 2017
OLG is greater than 60 per cent. Year ended 30 June
Own source operating revenue ratio
e |ndustry benchmark > 60%
Unrestricted current ratio
Council’s unrestricted current ratio Unrestricted current ratio
exceeded the industry benchmark by 0
a large margin. 107
The ‘unrestricted current ratio’ is 8 1
specific to local government and Ratio g |
represents council’s ability to meet its X
short-term obligations as they fall due. 4 r
The benchmark set by OLG is greater 2 L
than 1.5 times.
O J
2017
Year ended 30 June
Unrestricted current ratio === |ndustry benchmark > 1.5x
Debt service cover ratio
Council’s debt service cover ratio also Debt service cover ratio
exceeded the industry benchmark by
a large margin. 257
The ‘debt service cover ratio’ 20 r
measures the operating cash to Ratio 15 |
service debt including interest, X
principal and lease payments. The 10 r
benchmark set by OLG is greater than 5 |
two times.
O ]

2017
Year ended 30 June
Debt service cover ratio ==|ndustry benchmark > 2x
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Rates and annual charges outstanding ratio

Council’s rates and annual charges
outstanding ratio is better than the 12
benchmark for rural councils. The ratio
reflects Council’s effort to effectively
manage rates and charges recovery.

Rates and annual charges outstanding ratio

10

Ratio
The ‘rates and annual charges %
outstanding ratio’ assesses the impact

of uncollected rates and annual

charges on council’s liquidity and the

adequacy of debt recovery efforts.

The benchmark set by OLG is less

than 10 per cent for rural councils.

O N b O
T

2017
Year ended 30 June

Rates and annual charges outsatanding ratio
e |ndustry benchmark < 10%

Cash expense cover ratio

Council’s high levels of liquidity results Cash expense cover ratio
in being well over the benchmark for

the cash expense cover ratio. 20t

This liquidity ratio indicates the number 15 |
of months the council can continue
paying for its immediate expenses
without additional cash inflow. The
benchmark set by OLG is greater than 5 F
three months.

10

Ratio
(months)

2017
Year ended 30 June

Cash expense cover ratio
e |ndustry benchmark > 3 months

Building and infrastructure renewals ratio

Council has not met the benchmark Building and infrastructure renewals ratio
for the building and infrastructure
renewals ratio. Council has identified, 120
as an amalgamation priority, the need 100 r
to focus on renewing its assets to Ratio 80 [
maintain a standard acceptable to the % 60 |
community.
o ) 40
The ‘building and infrastructure 20
renewals ratio assesses the rate at

which these assets are being renewed 0
against the rate at which they are
depreciating. The benchmark set by

OLG is greater than 100 per cent. Building and infrastructure renewals ratio
e |ndustry benchmark > 100%

2017
Year ended 30 June

This ratio is sourced from council’s
Special Schedule 7 which has not
been audited.
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OTHER MATTERS

Legislative compliance

My audit procedures did not identify any instances of non-compliance with legislative requirements or
a material deficiency in the Council’s accounting records or financial reports. The Council’s:

o accounting records were maintained in a manner and form to allow the general purpose
financial statements to be prepared and effectively audited

o staff provided all accounting records and information relevant to the audit.

Chris Clayton

Director, Financial Audit Services

Ccc: Mr Allen Dwyer, General Manager
Mr Tim Hurst, Acting Chief Executive of the Office of Local Government
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Contents Page

1. Statement by Councillors and Management 2

2. Special Purpose Financial Statements:

Income Statement — Water Supply Business Activity 3
Income Statement — Sewerage Business Activity 4
Income Statement — Other Business Activities n/a
Statement of Financial Position — Water Supply Business Activity 5
Statement of Financial Position — Sewerage Business Activity 6
Statement of Financial Position — Other Business Activities n/a
3. Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements 7
4. Auditor’s Report 16

Background

0]

(in)

(iii)

@iv)

These Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared for the use by both Council and the Office of
Local Government in fulfilling their requirements under National Competition Policy.

The principle of competitive neutrality is based on the concept of a ‘level playing field’ between persons/entities
competing in a market place, particularly between private and public sector competitors.

Essentially, the principle is that government businesses, whether Commonwealth, state or local, should operate
without net competitive advantages over other businesses as a result of their public ownership.

For Council, the principle of competitive neutrality and public reporting applies only to declared business activities.

These include (a) those activities classified by the Australian Bureau of Statistics as business activities being
water supply, sewerage services, abattoirs, gas production and reticulation, and (b) those activities with a turnover
of more than $2 million that Council has formally declared as a business activity (defined as Category 1 activities).

In preparing these financial statements for Council’s self-classified Category 1 businesses and ABS-defined
activities, councils must (a) adopt a corporatisation model and (b) apply full cost attribution including tax-equivalent
regime payments and debt guarantee fees (where the business benefits from Council's borrowing position by
comparison with commercial rates).

page 1



SPFS 2017

Cootanﬁundra~Gundagai Regional Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Statement by Councillors and Management
made pursuant to the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

The attached Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:

¢ the NSW Government Palicy Statement 'Application of National Competition Policy to
Local Government',

¢ the Division of Local Government Guidelines ‘Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses —
A Guide to Competitive Neutrality’,

® the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting,

® the NSW Office of Water Best-Practice Management of Water and Sewerage Guidelines.
To the best of our knowledge and belief, these financial statements:

® present fairly the operating result and financial position for each of Council's declared business
activities for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017, and

® accord with Council's accounting and other records.

We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 19 October 2017.

27 VN 4

Abb McAlister Dennis Palmer
Mayor Councillor
,‘/.'
. v/ .
{ |
Allen Dwyer Kate Monaghan
General Manager Responsible accounting officer
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Income Statement of Council's Water Supply Business Activity
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Actual

13/5/16
$'000 to 30/6/17
Income from continuing operations
Access charges 1,530
User charges 2,072
Fees 13
Interest 123
Grants and contributions provided for non-capital purposes 48
Profit from the sale of assets -
Share of profit from equity accounted investment -
Other income 11
Total income from continuing operations 3,797
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 509
Borrowing costs -
Materials and contracts 1,142
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 600
Water purchase charges 1,115
Loss on sale of assets -
Calculated taxation equivalents -
Other expenses 125
Total expenses from continuing operations 3,491
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts 306
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes -
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts 306
Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations -
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax 306
Less: corporate taxation equivalent (30%) [based on result before capital] (92)
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX 214
Plus Assets and liabilities transferred from former councils 7,474
Plus Asset revaluation reserves transferred from former councils 10,755
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
— Taxation equivalent payments -
— Debt guarantee fees -
— Corporate taxation equivalent 92
Less:
— Tax equivalent dividend paid -
— Surplus dividend paid -
Closing retained profits 18,535
Return on capital % 2.0%
Subsidy from Council 52
Calculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (deficit) after tax 214
Less: capital grants and contributions (excluding developer contributions) -
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes 214
Potential dividend calculated from surplus 107
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Income Statement of Council's Sewerage Business Activity
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Actual

13/5/16
$ 000 to 30/6/17
Income from continuing operations
Access charges 2,272
User charges 298
Liquid trade waste charges -
Fees 10
Interest 121
Grants and contributions provided for non-capital purposes a7
Profit from the sale of assets -
Share of profit from equity accounted investment -
Other income -
Total income from continuing operations 2,748
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 447
Borrowing costs -
Materials and contracts 649
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 953
Loss on sale of assets -
Calculated taxation equivalents -
Other expenses 7,101
Total expenses from continuing operations 9,150
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts (6,402)
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes -
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts (6,402)

Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations -
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax (6,402)
Less: corporate taxation equivalent (30%) [based on result before capital] -

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX (6,402)
Plus Assets and liabilities transferred from former councils 8,054
Plus Asset revaluation reserves transferred from former councils 26,236

Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:

— Taxation equivalent payments -
— Debt guarantee fees -
— Corporate taxation equivalent -
Less:

— Tax equivalent dividend paid -
— Surplus dividend paid -
Closing retained profits 27,888

Return on capital % -28.0%
Subsidy from Council 6,946

Calculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (deficit) after tax (6,402)
Less: capital grants and contributions (excluding developer contributions) -

Surplus for dividend calculation purposes -
Potential dividend calculated from surplus -
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Statement of Financial Position — Council's Water Supply Business Activity
as at 30 June 2017

Actual
$'000 2017

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents -
Investments 4,635
Receivables 705
Inventories 17
Other -
Non-current assets classified as held for sale -

Total current assets 5,357

Non-current assets

Investments -
Receivables -
Inventories -
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 15,059
Investment property -
Other -

Total non-current assets 15,059

TOTAL ASSETS 20,416

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Bank overdraft -
Payables 214
Income received in advance -
Borrowings -
Provisions —

Total current liabilities 214

Non-current liabilities

Payables -
Income received in advance -
Borrowings -
Provisions -

Total non-current liabilities —

TOTAL LIABILITIES 214

NET ASSETS 20,202

EQUITY

Retained earnings 18,535
Revaluation reserves 1,667
Other reserves -

Council equity interest 20,202
Non-controlling equity interest

TOTAL EQUITY 20,202
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Statement of Financial Position — Council's Sewerage Business Activity
as at 30 June 2017

Actual
$'000 2017

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents -
Investments 4,422
Receivables 639
Inventories -
Other -
Non-current assets classified as held for sale -

Total current Assets 5,061

Non-current assets

Investments -
Receivables -
Inventories -
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 22,866
Investment property -
Intangible assets -
Other —

Total non-current assets 22,866

TOTAL ASSETS 27,927

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Bank overdraft -
Payables 39
Income received in advance -
Borrowings -
Provisions -

Total current liabilities 39

Non-current liabilities

Payables -
Income received in advance -
Borrowings -
Provisions —

Total non-current liabilities —

TOTAL LIABILITIES 39

NET ASSETS 27,888

EQUITY

Retained earnings 27,888
Revaluation reserves -
Other reserves -

Council equity interest 27,888
Non-controlling equity interest

TOTAL EQUITY 27,888
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Contents of the notes accompanying the financial statements
Note Details
1 Summary of significant accounting policies
2 Water Supply Business Best-Practice Management disclosure requirements

3 Sewerage Business Best-Practice Management disclosure requirements
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements

for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 1. Significant accounting policies

A statement summarising the supplemental
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
Special Purpose Financial Statements (SPFS) for
National Competition Policy (NCP) reporting
purposes follows.

These financial statements have been prepared for
the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017. On 12 May
2016, the former Cootamundra Shire Council and
Gundagai Shire Council were amalgamated to form
Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council. Therefore
no prior year comparatives are shown.

These financial statements are SPFS prepared for
use by Council and the Office of Local Government.
For the purposes of these statements, the Council is
a non-reporting not-for-profit entity.

The figures presented in these Special Purpose
Financial Statements have been prepared in
accordance with the recognition and measurement
criteria of relevant Australian Accounting Standards,
other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and Australian
Accounting Interpretations.

The disclosures in these Special Purpose Financial
Statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW), the Local
Government (General) Regulation, and the Local
Government Code of Accounting Practice and
Financial Reporting.

The statements are prepared on an accruals basis.
They are based on historic costs and do not take into
account changing money values or, except where
specifically stated, current values of non-current
assets. Certain taxes and other costs, appropriately
described, have been imputed for the purposes of
the National Competition Policy.

National Competition Policy

Council has adopted the principle of ‘competitive
neutrality’ in its business activities as part of the
National Competition Policy which is being applied
throughout Australia at all levels of government.

The framework for its application is set out in the
June 1996 NSW government policy statement titled
‘Application of National Competition Policy to Local
Government'.

The Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses, A
Guide to Competitive Neutrality issued by the Office
of Local Government in July 1997 has also been
adopted.

The pricing and costing guidelines outline the
process for identifying and allocating costs to
activities and provide a standard for disclosure
requirements.

These disclosures are reflected in Council's pricing
and/or financial reporting systems and include
taxation equivalents, Council subsidies, return on
investments (rate of return), and dividends paid.

Declared business activities

In accordance with Pricing and Costing for Council
Businesses — A Guide to Competitive Neutrality,
Council has declared that the following are to be
considered as business activities:

Category 1

(where gross operating turnover is over $2 million)

a. Water Supplies
The supply of potable water to the residents of
Cootamundra and Gundagai townships.

b. Sewerage Treatment

The provision of sewerage facilities and services to the
residents of the Cootamundra and Gundagai
townships.

Category 2

(where gross operating turnover is less than $2 million)

Council has no category 2 business activities.

Monetary amounts

Amounts shown in the financial statements are in
Australian currency and rounded to the nearest
thousand dollars, except for Note 2 (Water Supply
Best-Practice Management Disclosures) and Note 3
(Sewerage Best-Practice Management Disclosures).

As required by the NSW Office of Water (Department

of Primary Industries) the amounts shown in Note 2
and Note 3 are disclosed in whole dollars.
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements

for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Taxation-equivalent charges

Council is liable to pay various taxes and financial
duties. Where this is the case, they are disclosed as
a cost of operations just like all other costs.

However, where Council does not pay some taxes
which are generally paid by private sector
businesses, such as income tax, these equivalent tax
payments have been applied to all Council-
nominated business activities and are reflected in
Special Purpose Financial Statements.

For the purposes of disclosing comparative
information relevant to the private sector equivalent,
the following taxation equivalents have been applied
to all Council-nominated business activities (this
does not include Council’'s non-business activities):

Notional rate applied (%)

Corporate income tax rate — 30%

Land tax-— the first $549,000 of combined land
values attracts 0%. For the combined land values in
excess of $549,001 up to $3,357,000 the rate
is 1.6% + $100. For the remaining combined land
value that exceeds $3,357,000 a premium marginal
rate of 2.0% applies.

Payroll tax — 5.45% on the value of taxable salaries
and wages in excess of $750,000.

In accordance with the Department of Primary
Industries Water (DPIW), a payment for the amount
calculated as the annual tax equivalent charges
(excluding income tax) must be paid from water
supply and sewerage business activities.

The payment of taxation equivalent charges, referred
to in the NSW Office of Water Guidelines to as a
‘dividend for taxation equivalent’, may be applied for
any purpose allowed under the Local Government
Act, 1993.

Achievement of substantial compliance to the NSW
Office of Water Guidelines is not a prerequisite for
the payment of the tax equivalent charges, however
the payment must not exceed $3 per assessment.

Income tax

An income tax equivalent has been applied on the
profits of the business activities.

Whilst income tax is not a specific cost for the
purpose of pricing a good or service, it needs to be
taken into account in terms of assessing the rate of
return required on capital invested.

Accordingly, the return on capital invested is set at a
pre-tax level - gain/(loss) from ordinary activities
before capital amounts, as would be applied by a
private sector competitor. That is, it should include a
provision equivalent to the corporate income tax rate,
currently 30%.

Income tax is only applied where a gain/ (loss) from
ordinary activities before capital amounts has been
achieved.

Since the taxation equivalent is notional — that is, it is
payable to Council as the ‘owner’ of business
operations - it represents an internal payment and
has no effect on the operations of the Council.
Accordingly, there is no need for disclosure of
internal charges in the SPFS.

The rate applied of 30% is the equivalent company
tax rate prevalent at reporting date. No adjustments
have been made for variations that have occurred
during the year.

Local government rates and charges

A calculation of the equivalent rates and charges
payable on all category 1 businesses has been
applied to all land assets owned or exclusively used
by the business activity.

Loan and debt guarantee fees

The debt guarantee fee is designed to ensure that
council business activities face ‘true’ commercial
borrowing costs in line with private sector
competitors.

In order to calculate a debt guarantee fee, Council
has determined what the differential borrowing rate
would have been between the commercial rate and
Council’'s borrowing rate for its business activities.
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SPFS 2017

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements

for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(if) Subsidies

Government policy requires that subsidies provided
to customers, and the funding of those subsidies,
must be explicitly disclosed.

Subsidies occur when Council provides services on a
less-than-cost-recovery basis. This option is
exercised on a range of services in order for Council
to meet its community service obligations.

Accordingly, ‘subsidies disclosed’ (in relation to
National Competition Policy) represents the
difference between revenue generated from ‘rate of
return’ pricing and revenue generated from prices set
by Council in any given financial year.

The overall effect of subsidies is contained within the
Income Statement of each reported business activity.

(iii) Return on investments (rate of return)

The NCP policy statement requires that councils with
Category 1 businesses ‘would be expected to
generate a return on capital funds employed that is
comparable to rates of return for private businesses
operating in a similar field'.

Such funds are subsequently available for meeting
commitments or financing future investment
strategies.

The actual rate of return achieved by each business
activity is disclosed at the foot of each respective
Income Statement.

The rate of return is calculated as follows:

Operating result before capital income + interest expense

Written down value of |,PP&E as at 30 June

As a minimum, business activities should generate a
return equal to the Commonwealth 10 year bond rate
which is 2.38% at 30/6/17.

(iv) Dividends

Council is not required to pay dividends to either
itself (as owner of a range of businesses) or to any
external entities.

Local government water supply and sewerage
businesses are permitted to pay an annual dividend
from its water supply or sewerage business surplus.

Each dividend must be calculated and approved in
accordance with the DPIW guidelines and must not
exceed:

(i) 50% of this surplus in any one year, or

(ii) the number of water supply or sewerage
assessments at 30 June 2017 multiplied by $30
(less the payment for tax equivalent charges, not
exceeding $3 per assessment).

In accordance with the DPIW guidelines a Dividend
Payment form, Statement of Compliance, Unqualified
Independent Financial Audit Report and Compliance
Audit Report are required to be submitted to the
DPIW.
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 2. Water supply business
best-practice management disclosure requirements

SPFS 2017

Dollars amounts shown below are in whole dollars (unless otherwise indicated) 2017
1. Calculation and payment of tax-equivalents
[all local government local water utilities must pay this dividend for tax equivalents]
(i) Calculated tax equivalents | — |
(i)  Number of assessments multiplied by $3/assessment | 12,960 |
(iii)  Amounts payable for tax equivalents [lesser of (i) and (ii)] | — |
(iv)  Amounts actually paid for tax equivalents | — |
2. Dividend from surplus
(i)  50% of surplus before dividends | 107,100 |
[calculated in accordance with Best-Practice Management for Water Supply and Sewerage Guidelines]
(i)  Number of assessments multiplied by $30/assessment, less tax equivalent | 129,600 |
charges/assessment
(iif)  Cumulative surplus before dividends for the 3 years to 30 June 2017, less the
cumulative dividends paid for the 2 years to 13 May 2016 and 30 June 2015 279,400 |
2017 Surplus
(iv) Maximum dividend from surplus [least of (i), (ii) and (iii) above] | 107,100 |
(v) Dividend actually paid from surplus [refer below for required pre-dividend payment criteria] | — |
(vi) Are the overhead reallocation charges to the water business fair and reasonable? ® YES
3. Required outcomes for 6 criteria
[to be eligible for the payment of a ‘dividend from surplus’, all the criteria below need a ‘YES']
(i) Completion of strategic business plan (including financial plan)
(i)  Full cost recovery, without significant cross subsidies
[refer item 2 (a) in table 1 on page 22 of the Best-Practice Guidelines]
— Complying charges [item 2 (b) in table 1]
— DSP with commercial developer charges [item 2 (e) in table 1]
— If dual water supplies, complying charges [item 2 (g) in table 1]
(iii)  Sound water conservation and demand management implemented YES
(iv)  Sound drought management implemented
(v) Complete performance reporting form (by 15 September each year) YES
(vi) a. Integrated water cycle management evaluation
b. Complete and implement integrated water cycle management strategy
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 2. Water supply business

best-practice management disclosure requirements (continued)

SPFS 2017

Dollars amounts shown below are in whole dollars (unless otherwise indicated)

2017

National Water Initiative (NWI) financial performance indicators

NWI F1

NWI F4

NWI F9

NWI F11

NWI F14

NWI F17

NWI F26

Notes: 1.

Total revenue (water)
Total income (w13) — grants for the acquisition of assets (wlla) — interest income (w9)
— Aboriginal Communities W&S Program income (w10a)

Revenue from residential usage charges (water)

Income from residential usage charges (w6b) x 100 divided by the sum of
[income from residential usage charges (w6a) + income from residential
access charges (w6b)]

Written down replacement cost of fixed assets (water)
Written down current cost of system assets (w47)

Operating cost (OMA) (water)

Management expenses (wl) + operational and maintenance expenses (w2)

Capital expenditure (water)
Acquisition of fixed assets (w16)

Economic real rate of return (water)

[total income (w13) —interest income (w9) — grants for acquisition of assets (wlla) —
operating costs (NWI F11) — current cost depreciation (w3)] x 100 divided by

[written down current cost of system assets (w47) + plant and equipment (w33b)]

Capital works grants (water)
Grants for the acquisition of assets (wlla)

References to w (e.g. w12) refer to item numbers within Special Schedules 3 and 4 of
Council’s Annual Financial Statements.

The NWI performance indicators are based upon the National Performance Framework
Handbook for Urban Performance Reporting Indicators and Definitions.

refer to 3.2 (2) on page 15 of the Best-Practice Management of Water Supply
and Sewerage Guidelines, 2007

$'000

%

$'000

$'000

$'000

%

$'000

3,674 |

53.78%)|

14,945 |

2,891 |

303 |

1.22%]
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 3. Sewerage business

best-practice management disclosure requirements

SPFS 2017

Dollars amounts shown below are in whole dollars (unless otherwise indicated) 2017
1. Calculation and payment of tax-equivalents
[all local government local water utilities must pay this dividend for tax equivalents]
(i) Calculated tax equivalents | — |
(i)  Number of assessments multiplied by $3/assessment | 12,015 |
(iii)  Amounts payable for tax equivalents [lesser of (i) and (ii)] | — |
(iv)  Amounts actually paid for tax equivalents | — |
2. Dividend from surplus
(i)  50% of surplus before dividends | — |
[calculated in accordance with Best-Practice Management for Water Supply and Sewerage Guidelines]
(i)  Number of assessments x ($30 less tax equivalent charges per assessment) | 120,150 |
(iif)  Cumulative surplus before dividends for the 3 years to 30 June 2017, less the
cumulative dividends paid for the 2 years to 13 May 2016 and 30 June 2015 | (5,674,200)|
2017 Surplus
(iv) Maximum dividend from surplus [least of (i), (ii) and (iii) above] | n/a|
(v) Dividend actually paid from surplus [refer below for required pre-dividend payment criteria] | — |
(vi)  Are the overhead reallocation charges to the sewer business fair and reasonable? *

3. Required outcomes for 4 criteria
[to be eligible for the payment of a ‘dividend from surplus’, all the criteria below need a ‘YES']

0]
(i)

(iii)
(iv)

Completion of strategic business plan (including financial plan)

Pricing with full cost-recovery, without significant cross subsidies
[refer item 2 (a) in table 1 on page 22 of the Best-Practice Guidelines]

Complying charges (a) Residential [item 2 (c) in table 1]
(b) Non-residential [item 2 (c) in table 1]
(c) Trade waste [item 2 (d) in table 1]
DSP with commercial developer charges [item 2 (e) in table 1]
Liquid trade waste approvals and policy [item 2 (f) in table 1]

Complete performance reporting form (by 15 September each year)
a. Integrated water cycle management evaluation

b. Complete and implement integrated water cycle management strategy

YES

YES

YES
YES
ES
YES
YES

<

YES

=2
I!

zZ
@)
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SPFS 2017
Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 3. Sewerage business
best-practice management disclosure requirements (continued)

Dollars amounts shown below are in whole dollars (unless otherwise indicated) 2017

National Water Initiative (NWI) financial performance indicators

NWI F2  Total revenue (sewerage) $000 | 2,627 |
Total income (s14) — grants for acquisition of assets (s12a) — interest income (s10)
— Aboriginal Communities W&S Program income (w10a)

NWI F10  Written down replacement cost of fixed assets (sewerage) $000 | 22,777 |
Written down current cost of system assets (s48)

NWI F12  Operating cost (sewerage) $000 | 1,258 |

Management expenses (sl1) + operational and maintenance expenses (s2)

NWI F15 Capital expenditure (sewerage) $000 | 858 |

Acquisition of fixed assets (s17)

NWI F18 Economic real rate of return (sewerage) % | 1.82%|
[total income (s14) — interest income (s10) — grants for acquisition of assets (s12a)
— operating cost (NWI F12) — current cost depreciation (s3)] x 100 divided by
[written down current cost (i.e. WDCC) of system assets (s48) + plant and equipment (s34b)]

NWI F27  Capital works grants (sewerage) $000 | -
Grants for the acquisition of assets (12a)

National Water Initiative (NWI) financial performance indicators
Water and sewer (combined)

NWI F3  Total income (water and sewerage) $000 | 6,301 |
Total income (w13 + s14) + gain/loss on disposal of assets (w14 + s15)
minus grants for acquisition of assets (wlla + s12a) — interest income (w9 + s10)

NWI F8  Revenue from community service obligations (water and sewerage) % | 1.51%|
Community service obligations (NWI F25) x 100 divided by total income (NWI F3)

NWI F16 Capital expenditure (water and sewerage) $000 | 1,161 |
Acquisition of fixed assets (w16 + s17)

NWI F19 Economic real rate of return (water and sewerage) % | 1.58%|
[total income (w13 + s14) —interest income (w9 + s10) — grants for acquisition of assets
(wlla + s12a) — operating cost (NWI F11 + NWI F12) — current cost depreciation (w3 + s3)] x 100
divided by [written down replacement cost of fixed assets (NWI F9 + NWI F10)
+ plant and equipment (w33b + s34b)]

NWI F20 Dividend (water and sewerage) $000 | — |
Dividend paid from surplus (2 (v) of Note 2 + 2 (v) of Note 3)

NWI F21  Dividend payout ratio (water and sewerage) % | 0.00%|
Dividend (NWI F20) x 100 divided by net profit after tax (NWI F24)
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Note 3. Sewerage business
best-practice management disclosure requirements (continued)

SPFS 2017

Dollars amounts shown below are in whole dollars (unless otherwise indicated) 2017
National Water Initiative (NWI) financial performance indicators
Water and sewer (combined)
NWI F22 Net debt to equity (water and sewerage) % -18.83%|
Overdraft (w36 + s37) + borrowings (w38 + s39) — cash and investments (w30 + s31)
x 100 divided by [total assets (w35 + s36) — total liabilities (w40 + s41)]
NWI F23 Interest cover (water and sewerage) > 100 |
Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) divided by net interest
Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT): | 599 |
Operating result (wl5a + s16a) + interest expense (w4a + s4a) — interest income (w9 + s10)
—gain/loss on disposal of assets (w14 + s15) + miscellaneous expenses (w4b + w4c + s4b + s4c)
Net interest: |- 244 |
Interest expense (w4a + s4a) — interest income (w9 + s10)
NWI F24  Net profit after tax (water and sewerage) $000 | (6,096)|
Surplus before dividends (wl5a + s16a) — tax equivalents paid (Note 2-1 (iv) + Note 3-1 (iv))
NWI F25 Community service obligations (water and sewerage) $000 | 95 |

Grants for pensioner rebates (w1lb + s12b)

Notes: 1. References to w (eg. s12) refer to item numbers within Special Schedules 5 and 6 of
Council’s Annual Financial Statements.

2. The NWI performance indicators are based upon the National Performance Framework Handbook
for Urban Performance Reporting Indicators and Definitions.

a referto 3.2 (2) on page 15 of the Best-Practice Management of Water Supply
and Sewerage Guidelines, 2007
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the special purpose financial statement

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

To the Councillors of Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council
Opinion

I have audited the accompanying special purpose financial statements (the financial statements) of
Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council’s (the Council) Declared Business Activities, which
comprise the statement of financial position of each Declared Business Activity as at 30 June 2017,
the income statement of each Declared Business Activity for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017,
notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for
the Business Activities declared by Council, and the Statement by Councillors and Management.

The Declared Business Activities of the Council are:

. Water Supply
. Sewerage.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Council’s declared Business Activities as at 30 June 2017, and their financial performance for the
period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017, in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards
described in Note 1 and the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting
(LG Code).

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report and in particular, the Emphasis of
Matter referring to the basis of accounting.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the
standards are described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of my report.

| am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the:

. Australian Auditing Standards

. Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants’ (APES 110).

I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.

Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of New
South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

. providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an
Auditor-General

. mandating the Auditor-General as the auditor of councils

. precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services.

Level 15, 1 Margaret Street, Sydney NSW 2000 | GPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001 | t02 92757101 | f02 9275 7179 | e mail@audit.nsw.gov.au | audit.nsw.gov.au
page 16



| believe the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

Without modifying my opinion, | draw attention to Note (1) to the financial statements which describes
the basis of accounting. The financial statements have been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling
Council’s financial reporting responsibilities under the LG Code. As a result, the financial statements
may not be suitable for another purpose.

The Councillors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
and for determining that the accounting policies, described in Note 1 to the financial statements, are
appropriate to meet the requirements in the LG Code. The Councillors’ responsibility also includes
such internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Councillors must assess the Council’s ability to continue as a
going concern except where the Council will be dissolved or amalgamated by an Act of Parliament.
The assessment must disclose, as applicable, matters related to going concern and the
appropriateness of using the going concern basis of accounting, as it affects the Council’'s Declared
Business Activities.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to:

. obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
. issue an Independent Auditor’'s Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take
based on the financial statements.

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board website at:
http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors _responsibilities/ar4.pdf.

The description forms part of my auditor’s report.
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My opinion does not provide assurance:

. that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically

. on the best practice management disclosures in Notes 2 and 3 of the financial statements

. about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial
statements on any website where they may be presented

. about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the financial statements.

Chris Clayton

Director, Financial Audit Services

30 October 2017
SYDNEY
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

SPECIAL SCHEDULES
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017




Special Schedules 2017

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Special Schedules

for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Contents
Special Schedules*
Special Schedule 1

Special Schedule 2(a)
Special Schedule 2(b)

Special Schedule 3
Special Schedule 4

Special Schedule 5
Special Schedule 6

Notes to Special Schedules 3 and 5
Special Schedule 7

Special Schedule 8

Net Cost of Services

Statement of Long Term Debt (all purposes)
Statement of Internal Loans (Sect. 410(3) LGA 1993)

Water Supply Operations — incl. Income Statement
Water Supply — Statement of Financial Position

Sewerage Service Operations — incl. Income Statement
Sewerage Service — Statement of Financial Position

Report on Infrastructure Assets

Permissible Income Calculation

! Special Schedules are not audited (with the exception of Special Schedule 8).

Background

Page

12

13

14

17

(i) These Special Schedules have been designed to meet the requirements of special purpose users such as;

° the NSW Grants Commission

° the Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS),
° the NSW Office of Water (NOW), and
¢ the Office of Local Government (OLG).

(i)  The financial data is collected for various uses including;

* the allocation of Financial Assistance Grants,
* the incorporation of Local Government financial figures in national statistics,

° the monitoring of loan approvals,

¢ the allocation of borrowing rights, and
* the monitoring of the financial activities of specific services.
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Special Schedule 1 — Net Cost of Services

for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Special Schedules 2017

$'000

Expenses from Income from Net cost
Function or activity continuing continuing operations )

) of services
operations Non-capital Capital

Governance 3,972 6,004 9,000 11,032
Administration 5,617 3,103 - (2,514)
Public order and safety
Fire service levy, fire protection, emergency
services 1,097 383 - (714)
Beach control - - - -
Enforcement of local government regulations - 10 - 10
Animal control 267 175 - (92)
Other - - - -
Total public order and safety 1,364 568 - (796)
Health 141 6 - (135)
Environment
Noxious plants and insect/vermin control 185 59 - (126)
Other environmental protection 84 270 - 186
Solid waste management 1,955 2,594 14 653
Street cleaning 64 - - (64)
Drainage - - - -
Stormwater management 216 92 - (124)
Total environment 2,504 3,015 14 525
Community services and education
Administration and education - - - -
Social protection (welfare) - - - -
Aged persons and disabled - - - -
Children’s services 50 2 - (48)
Total community services and education 50 2 — (48)
Housing and community amenities
Public cemeteries 308 313 - 5
Public conveniences 199 - - (199)
Street lighting 137 45 - (92)
Town planning 681 471 - (210)
Other community amenities 10 9 - (1)
Total housing and community amenities 1,335 838 - (497)
Water supplies 3,491 3,797 — 306
Sewerage services 9,150 2,748 - (6,402)
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Special Schedule 1 — Net Cost of Services (continued)
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Special Schedules 2017

$'000

Expenses from

Income from

Function or activity continuing continuing operations Net cost
) of services
operations Non-capital Capital
Recreation and culture
Public libraries 710 82 - (628)
Museums 34 1 - (33)
Art galleries - - - -
Community centres and halls 70 - 253 183
Performing arts venues - - - -
Other performing arts - - - -
Other cultural services - - - -
Sporting grounds and venues 193 24 - (169)
Swimming pools 823 176 190 (457)
Parks and gardens (lakes) 1,159 13 86 (1,060)
Other sport and recreation 57 - 59 2
Total recreation and culture 3,046 296 588 (2,162)
Fuel and energy — — — —
Agriculture — — — —
Mining, manufacturing and construction
Building control - - - -
Other mining, manufacturing and construction 30 - - (30)
Total mining, manufacturing and const. 30 — — (30)
Transport and communication
Urban roads (UR) — local 1,825 - 218 (1,607)
Urban roads — regional 7 - - ©)
Sealed rural roads (SRR) — local 2,626 1,839 - (787)
Sealed rural roads (SRR) — regional 1,754 707 - (1,047)
Unsealed rural roads (URR) — local 4,123 2 - (4,121)
Unsealed rural roads (URR) — regional 40 - - (40)
Bridges on UR — local 444 - - (444)
Bridges on SRR — local - - - -
Bridges on URR — local - - - -
Bridges on regional roads - - - -
Parking areas - - - -
Footpaths 151 3 - (148)
Aerodromes 150 11 - (139)
Other transport and communication 722 - 84 (638)
Total transport and communication 11,842 2,562 302 (8,978)
Economic affairs
Camping areas and caravan parks 78 63 - (15)
Other economic affairs 958 680 35 (243)
Total economic affairs 1,036 743 35 (258)
Totals — functions 43,578 23,682 9,939 (9,957)
General purpose revenues ¥ - 15,014 - 15,014
Share of interests — joint ventures and
associates using the equity method — — — —
NET OPERATING RESULT @ 43,578 38,696 9,939 5,057

(1) Includes: rates and annual charges (including ex gratia, excluding water and sewer), non-capital general purpose

(2) As reported in the Income Statement

grants, interest on investments (excluding externally restricted assets) and interest on overdue rates and annual charges
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Special Schedule 2(a) — Statement of Long Term Debt (all purpose)
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Special Schedules 2017

$'000

Classification of debt

I5rincipal outstanding at
beginning of the year (former
Councils)

Non-

Total
current

Current

New
loans
raised
during
the year

Debt redemption
during the year

From
revenue

Sinking
funds

Transfers
to sinking
funds

Interest
applicable
for year

Principal outstanding at the end
of the year

Non-

Total
current

Current

Loans (by source)
Commonwealth Government
NSW Treasury Corporation
Other State Government
Public subscription

Financial institutions

Other

Total loans

Other long term debt
Ratepayers advances
Government advances
Finance leases
Deferred payments
Total long term debt

Total debt

392 3,459 3,851

392

185

410 3,049 3,459

Notes: excludes (i) internal loans and (ii) principal inflows/outflows relating to loan re-financing.

This schedule is prepared using the face value of debt obligations, rather than fair value (which are reported in the GPFS).
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Special Schedules 2017

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Special Schedule 3 — Water Supply Income Statement
Includes all internal transactions, i.e. prepared on a gross basis
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Actuals
13/5/16
$'000 to 30/6/17
A Expenses and income
Expenses
1. Management expenses
a. Administration 152
b. Engineering and supervision 405
2.  Operation and maintenance expenses
—dams and weirs
a. Operation expenses -
b. Maintenance expenses -
— Mains
c. Operation expenses 25
d. Maintenance expenses 322
— Reservoirs
e. Operation expenses 8
f. Maintenance expenses 24
— Pumping stations
g. Operation expenses (excluding energy costs) 1
h. Energy costs 78
i. Maintenance expenses -
— Treatment
j- Operation expenses (excluding chemical costs) 85
k. Chemical costs 22
[. Maintenance expenses 58
— Other
m. Operation expenses 13
n. Maintenance expenses 104
0. Purchase of water 1,594
3. Depreciation expenses
a. System assets 578
b. Plant and equipment 22
4. Miscellaneous expenses
a. Interest expenses -
b. Revaluation decrements -
c. Other expenses -
d. Impairment — system assets -
e. Impairment — plant and equipment -
f. Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program -
5. Total expenses 3,491
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Special Schedules 2017
Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Special Schedule 3 — Water Supply Income Statement (continued)
Includes all internal transactions, i.e. prepared on a gross basis
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Actuals
13/5/16
$'000 to 30/6/17
Income
6. Residential charges
a. Access (including rates) 1,193
b. Usage charges 1,388
7. Non-residential charges
a. Access (including rates) 337
b. Usage charges 684
8. Extracharges -
9. Interestincome 123
10. Otherincome 24
10a. Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program -
11. Grants
a. Grants for acquisition of assets -
b. Grants for pensioner rebates 48
c. Other grants -
12. Contributions
a. Developer charges -
b. Developer provided assets -
c. Other contributions -
13. Total income 3,797
14. Gain (or loss) on disposal of assets
15. Operating result 306
15a. Operating result (less grants for acquisition of assets) 306
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Special Schedules 2017

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Special Schedule 3 — Water Supply Income Statement (continued)
Includes all internal transactions, i.e. prepared on a gross basis
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Actuals
13/5/16
$'000 to 30/6/17
B Capital transactions
Non-operating expenditures
16. Acquisition of fixed assets
a. New assets for improved standards -
b. New assets for growth -
c. Renewals 281
d. Plant and equipment 22
17. Repayment of debt -
18. Totals 303
Non-operating funds employed
19. Proceeds from disposal of assets -
20. Borrowing utilised -
21. Totals —
C Rates and charges
22. Number of assessments
a. Residential (occupied) 3,642
b. Residential (unoccupied, ie. vacant lot) 142
c. Non-residential (occupied) 501
d. Non-residential (unoccupied, ie. vacant lot) 35
23. Number of ETs for which developer charges were received - ET
24. Total amount of pensioner rebates (actual dollars) $ 47,965
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Special Schedule 4 — Water Supply Statement of Financial Position
Includes internal transactions, i.e. prepared on a gross basis

as at 30 June 2017

Special Schedules 2017

Actuals Actuals Actuals
$000 Current Non-current Total
ASSETS
25. Cash and investments
a. Developer charges - - -
b. Special purpose grants - - -
c. Accrued leave - - -
d. Unexpended loans - - -
e. Sinking fund - - -
f. Other 4,635 - 4,635
26. Receivables
a. Specific purpose grants - - -
b. Rates and availability charges 52 - 52
c. User charges 653 - 653
d. Other - - -
27. Inventories 17 - 17
28. Property, plant and equipment
a. System assets - 14,945 14,945
b. Plant and equipment - 114 114
29. Other assets - - -
30. Total assets 5,357 15,059 20,416
LIABILITIES
31. Bank overdraft - - -
32. Creditors 214 - 214
33. Borrowings - - -
34. Provisions
a. Tax equivalents - - -
b. Dividend - - -
c. Other - - -
35. Total liabilities 214 - 214
36. NET ASSETS COMMITTED 5,143 15,059 20,202
EQUITY
37. Accumulated surplus 18,535
38. Asset revaluation reserve 1,667
39. Other reserves -
40. TOTAL EQUITY 20,202
Note to system assets:
41. Current replacement cost of system assets 30,931
42. Accumulated current cost depreciation of system assets (15,986)
43. Written down current cost of system assets 14,945
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Special Schedule 5 — Sewerage Service Income Statement
Includes all internal transactions, i.e. prepared on a gross basis
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Special Schedules 2017

Actuals
13/5/16
$'000 to 30/6/17
A Expenses and income
Expenses
1. Management expenses
a. Administration 139
b. Engineering and supervision 276
2.  Operation and maintenance expenses
—mains
a. Operation expenses -
b. Maintenance expenses 193
— Pumping stations
C. Operation expenses (excluding energy costs) -
d. Energy costs 73
e. Maintenance expenses 163
— Treatment
f. Operation EXPENSES (excl. chemical, energy, effluent and biosolids management costs) 101
g. Chemical costs 54
h. Energy costs -
i. Effluent management 44
j- Biosolids management 15
k. Maintenance expenses 199
— Other
I.  Operation expenses -
m. Maintenance expenses 1
3. Depreciation expenses
a. System assets 940
b. Plant and equipment 13
4. Miscellaneous expenses
a. Interest expenses -
b. Revaluation decrements 6,934
c. Other expenses 5
d. Impairment — system assets -
e. Impairment — plant and equipment -
f. Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program -
g. Tax equivalents dividends (actually paid) -
5. Total expenses 9,150
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Special Schedules 2017
Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Special Schedule 5 — Sewerage Service Income Statement (continued)
Includes all internal transactions, i.e. prepared on a gross basis
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Actuals
13/5/16
$'000 to 30/6/17
Income
6. Residential charges (including rates) 2,028
7. Non-residential charges
a. Access (including rates) 244
b. Usage charges 298
8. Trade waste charges
a. Annual fees -
b. Usage charges -
c. Excess mass charges -
d. Re-inspection fees -
9. Extracharges -
10. Interestincome 121
11. Otherincome 10
11a. Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program -
12. Grants
a. Grants for acquisition of assets -
b. Grants for pensioner rebates a7
c. Other grants -
13. Contributions
a. Developer charges -
b. Developer provided assets -
c. Other contributions -
14. Total income 2,748
15. Gain (or loss) on disposal of assets -
16. Operating result (6,402)
16a. Operating result (less grants for acquisition of assets) (6,402)
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Special Schedules 2017

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Special Schedule 5 — Sewerage Service Income Statement (continued)
Includes all internal transactions, i.e. prepared on a gross basis
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Actuals
13/5/16
$'000 to 30/6/17
B Capital transactions
Non-operating expenditures
17. Acquisition of fixed assets
a. New assets for improved standards -
b. New assets for growth -
c. Renewals 855
d. Plant and equipment 3
18. Repayment of debt -
19. Totals 858
Non-operating funds employed
20. Proceeds from disposal of assets -
21. Borrowing utilised -
22. Totals -
C Rates and charges
23. Number of assessments
a. Residential (occupied) 3,361
b. Residential (unoccupied, ie. vacant lot) 154
c. Non-residential (occupied) 445
d. Non-residential (unoccupied, ie. vacant lot) 45
24. Number of ETs for which developer charges were received - ET
25. Total amount of pensioner rebates (actual dollars) $ 47,031
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Special Schedule 6 — Sewerage Service Statement of Financial Position

Includes internal transactions, i.e. prepared on a gross basis
as at 30 June 2017

Special Schedules 2017

Actuals Actuals Actuals
$'000 Current Non-current Total
ASSETS
26. Cash and investments
a. Developer charges - - -
b. Special purpose grants - - -
c. Accrued leave - - -
d. Unexpended loans - - -
e. Sinking fund - - -
f. Other 4,422 - 4,422
27. Receivables
a. Specific purpose grants - - -
b. Rates and availability charges 339 - 339
c. User charges 300 - 300
d. Other - - -
28. Inventories - - -
29. Property, plant and equipment
a. System assets - 22,777 22,777
b. Plant and equipment - 89 89
30. Other assets - - -
31. Total assets 5,061 22,866 27,927
LIABILITIES
32. Bank overdraft - - -
33. Creditors 39 - 39
34. Borrowings - - -
35. Provisions
a. Tax equivalents - - -
b. Dividend - - -
c. Other - _ _
36. Total liabilities 39 - 39
37. NET ASSETS COMMITTED 5,022 22,866 27,888
EQUITY
38. Accumulated surplus 27,888
39. Asset revaluation reserve -
40. Other reserves -
41. TOTAL EQUITY 27,888
Note to system assets:
42. Current replacement cost of system assets 48,735
43. Accumulated current cost depreciation of system assets (25,958)
44. Written down current cost of system assets 22,777
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Special Schedules 2017
Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Notes to Special Schedules 3 and 5
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

1) (1)

Administration Engineering and supervision

(item 1a of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprises the following: (item 1b of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprises the following:
e Administration staff: » Engineering staff:
— Salaries and allowance — Salaries and allowance
- Travelling expenses - Travelling expenses
- Accrual of leave entitlements - Accrual of leave entitlements
— Employment overheads. - Employment overheads.
e Meter reading e Other technical and supervision staff;
— Salaries and allowance
e Bad and doubtful debts - Travelling expenses
- Accrual of leave entitlements
e Other administrative/corporate support services — Employment overheads.

Operational expenses (item 2 of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprise the day to day operational expenses
excluding maintenance expenses.

Maintenance expenses (item 2 of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprise the day to day repair and maintenance
expenses. (Refer to Section 5 of the Local Government Asset Accounting Manual regarding capitalisation
principles and the distinction between capital and maintenance expenditure).

Other expenses (item 4c of Special Schedules 3 and 5) includes all expenses not recorded elsewhere.
Revaluation decrements (item 4b of Special Schedules 3 and 5) is to be used when |,PP&E decreases in FV.

Impairment losses (item 4d and 4e of Special Schedules 3 and 5) are to be used when the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount (refer to page D-31).

Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program (item 4f of Special Schedules 3 and 5) is to be
used when operation and maintenance work has been undertaken on behalf of the Aboriginal Communities
Water and Sewerage Program. Similarly, income for item 11a of Special Schedule 3 and item 12a of Special
Schedule 5 are for services provided to the Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program and is not
part of Council’'s water supply and sewerage revenue.

Residential charges® (items 6a, 6b and item 6 of Special Schedules 3 and 5 respectively) include all income
from residential charges. Item 6 of Schedule 3 should be separated into 6a access charges (including rates if
applicable) and 6b usage charges.

Non-residential charges® (items 7a, 7b of Special Schedules 3 and 5) include all income from non-residential
charges separated into 7a access charges (including rates if applicable) and 7b usage charges.

Trade waste charges (item 8 of Special Schedule 5) include all income from trade waste charges separated
into 8a annual fees, 8b usage charges and 8c excess mass charges and 8d re-inspection fees.

Other income (items 10 and 11 of Special Schedules 3 and 5 respectively) include all income not recorded
elsewhere.

Other contributions (items 12c and 13c of Special Schedules 3 and 5 respectively) including capital contributions
for water supply or sewerage services received by Council under Section 565 of the Local Government Act.

Notes:

) Administration and engineering costs for the development of capital works projects should be reported as part of the
capital cost of the project and not as part of the recurrent expenditure (ie. in item 16 for water supply and item 17 for
sewerage, and not in items 1la and 1b).

@ To enable accurate reporting of residential revenue from usage charges, it is essential for councils to accurately
separate their residential (item 6) charges and non-residential (item 7) charges.
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Special Schedule 7 — Report on Infrastructure Assets as at 30 June 2017

Special Schedules 2017

$'000
Estimated cost| Estimated cost . .
to bring assets| to bring to the 2016/17 2016/17 Gross Assets in condition as a percentage of gross
to satisfactory, agreed level of Required Actual Net carrying replacement replacement cost
Asset class Asset category standard| service set by maintenance®, maintenance amount cost (GRC) 1 2 3 4 5
Council
Buildings Buildings — non-specialised - - - 120 2,513 7,736
Buildings — specialised 2,952 2,952 - - 17,630 49,066
Sub-total 2,952 2,952 — 120 20,143 56,802 | 29.0% | 56.0% | 7.0% 8.0% 0.0%
Other Other structures - - - - 8,148 16,098 | 29% 56% 7% 8% 0%
Sub-total - - - - 8,148 16,098 | 29.0% | 56.0% | 7.0% 8.0% 0.0%
Roads Sealed roads 5,433 5,433 - 3,263 121,053 208,178 | 29% 37% 31% 3% 0%
Unsealed roads 773 773 - 1,244 14,678 18,667 | 98% 1% 0% 1% 0%
Bridges 316 316 - - 22,807 43,766 | 95% 3% 1% 1% 0%
Footpaths 42 42 - 66 3,775 5,809 | 91% 7% 1% 1% 0%
Bulk earthworks - - - - 105,070 105,070 | 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Kerb & gutter 813 813 - - - - 17% 51% 23% 9% 0%
Sub-total 7,377 7,377 - 4,573 267,383 381,490 | 60.4% | 20.7% @ 17.0% | 1.8% 0.0%
Water supply [Water supply network 5,926 5,926 - 508 14,583 30,569 | 19% 25% 24% 22% 10%
network Sub-total 5,926 5,926 — 508 14,583 30,569 | 19.4% | 25.0% | 23.5% | 21.9% @ 10.2%
Sewerage Sewerage network 9,561 9,561 - 556 21,896 47,789 | 20% 24% 14% 17% 25%
network Sub-total 9,561 9,561 - 556 21,896 47,789 | 19.7% | 23.6% | 14.4% @ 17.1% | 25.2%
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Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Special Schedule 7 — Report on Infrastructure Assets as at 30 June 2017 (continued)

Special Schedules 2017

$'000
Estimated cost| Estimated cost . .
) ) Assets in condition as a percentage of gross
to bring assets| to bring to the 2016/17 2016/17 Gross replacement cost
to satisfactory, agreed level of Required Actual Net carrying replacement
Asset class Asset category standard| service set by maintenance®, maintenance amount cost (GRC) 1 2 3 4 5
Council
Stormwater |Stormwater drainage 12 12 - 34 11,156 17,133 [ 27% 48% 25% 0% 0%
drainage Sub-total 12 12 - 34 11,156 17,133 | 27.0% | 48.0% @ 25.0% | 0.0% | 0.0%
Open space/ |Swimming pools 541 541 - 104 3,532 7,331
recreational |Other - - - 505 940 1,229
assets Sub-total 541 541 — 609 4,472 8,560 | 20.0% | 51.0% @ 21.0% | 5.0% 3.0%
TOTAL — ALL ASSETS 26,369 26,369 - 6,400 347,781 558,441 | 49.0%  27.1% | 16.2%  5.0% | 2.8%
Notes:
a Required maintenance is the amount identified in Council's asset management plans.

Infrastructure asset condition assessment ‘key’

Good

Renewal required

Excellent No work required (normal maintenance)
Only minor maintenance work required
Average Maintenance work required

Poor
Very poor Urgent renewal/upgrading required
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Special Schedules 2017

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Special Schedule 7 — Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)
for the period 13 May 2016 to 30 June 2017

Amounts Indicator

$°'000 2017 2017
Infrastructure asset performance indicators *
consolidated
1. Infrastructure renewals ratio

(€]
Asset r(_angwals _ . . 4,494 60.03%
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 7,486
2. Infrastructure backlog ratio
Estimated cost to bring assets to a satisfactory standard 26,369 10.85%
Net carrying amount of infrastructure assets 242,994 '

3. Asset maintenance ratio
Actual asset maintenance 6,400 0.00
Required asset maintenance - '

Notes

*  All asset performance indicators are calculated using the asset classes identified in the previous table.

@ Asset renewals represent the replacement and/or refurbishment of existing assets to an equivalent
capacity/performance as opposed to the acquisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) that
increases capacity/performance.

Water Sewer General @
$'000 2017 2017 2017

Infrastructure asset performance indicators
by fund

1. Infrastructure renewals ratio
Asset renewals ?
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

45.23% 88.46% 57.01%

2. Infrastructure backlog ratio
Estimated cost to bring assets to a satisfactory standard

- . 40.64% 43.67% 5.27%
Net carrying amount of infrastructure assets

3. Asset maintenance ratio
Actugl asset malntgnance OOO OOO OOO
Requwed asset maintenance

Notes

@ General fund refers to all of Council’s activities except for its water and sewer activities which are listed separately.

@ Asset renewals represent the replacement and/or refurbishment of existing assets to an equivalent
capacity/performance as opposed to the acquisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) that
increases capacity/performance.
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Special Schedules 2017

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Special Schedule 8 — Permissible Income Calculation
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Calculation
$000 2017/18
. . ) Total
Notional general income calculation
Last year notional general income vyield a 7,269
Plus or minus adjustments @ b (22)
Notional general income c=(a+h) 7,247
Permissible income calculation
Special variation percentage © d
Or rate peg percentage e 1.50%
or crown land adjustment (incl. rate peg percentage) f
Less expiring special variation amount g -
Plus special variation amount h=dx(c-g) -
Or plus rate peg amount i=cxe 109
or plus Crown land adjustment and rate peg amount j=cxf -
Sub-total k=(c+g+h+i+]) 7,356
Plus (or minus) last year’s carry forward total | Q)
Less valuation objections claimed in the previous year m -
Sub-total n=(+m) ()
Total permissible income o=k+n 7,355
Less notional general income yield p 7,362
Catch-up or (excess) result g=o0-p @)
Plus income lost due to valuation objections claimed @ r -
Less unused catch-up © s -
Carry forward to next year t=q+r—s (7)
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Special Schedules 2017

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

Special Schedule 8 — Permissible Income Calculation (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2018

$’000

Notes

@

@

©)
4)

®)

(6)

The notional general income will not reconcile with rate income in the financial statements in the corresponding year. The statements are reported on an accrual accounting
basis which include amounts that relate to prior years’ rates income.

Adjustments account for changes in the number of assessments and any increase or decrease in land value occurring during the year. The adjustments are called
supplementary valuations as defined in the Valuation of Land Act 1916.

The ‘special variation percentage’ is inclusive of the rate peg percentage and where applicable Crown land adjustment.

Valuation objections are unexpected changes in land values as a result of land owners successfully objecting to the land value issued by the Valuer-General. Councils can
claim the value of the income lost due to valuation objections in any single year.
Unused catch-up amounts will be deducted if they are not caught up within 2 years. Usually councils will have a nominal carry forward figure. These amounts can be adjusted

for in setting the rates in a future year.

Carry forward amounts which are in excess (an amount that exceeds the permissible income) require ministerial approval by order published in the NSW Government Gazette in
accordance with section 512 of the Local Government Act 1993. The OLG will extract these amounts from Council’'s Special Schedule 8 in the financial data return (FDR) to
administer this process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Special Schedule No. 8

Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council

To the Councillors of Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council
Opinion
I have audited the accompanying special purpose financial statement comprising the reconciliation of

total permissible general income (Special Schedule No. 8) of Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional
Council (the Council) for the year ending 30 June 2018.

In my opinion, Special Schedule No. 8 of Cootamundra-Gundagai Regional Council for 30 June 2018
is prepared, in all material respects in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government
Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting (LG Code) issued by the Office of Local
Government (OLG), and is in accordance with the books and records of the Council.

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report, and in particular the Emphasis of
Matter paragraph, which describes the basis of accounting.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the
standards are described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Special Schedule No.8’
section of my report.

I am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the:

. Australian Auditing Standards

. ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110
‘Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants’ (APES 110).

I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.

Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of New
South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

. providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an
Auditor-General

. mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of councils

. precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Level 15, 1 Margaret Street, Sydney NSW 2000 | GPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001 | t02 9275 7101 | f02 9275 7179 | e mail@audit.nsw.gov.au | audit.nsw.gov.au
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Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

Without modifying my opinion, | draw attention to the notes and explanations in Special Schedule
No. 8 that instruct councils in its preparation so it complies with OLG’s requirements as described in
the LG Code. As a result, Special Schedule No. 8 may not be suitable for another purpose.

Councillors’ Responsibility for Special Schedule No. 8

The Councillors of the Council are responsible for the preparation of Special Schedule No. 8 in
accordance with the LG Code. The Councillors’ responsibility also includes such internal control as the
Councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of Special Schedule No. 8 that is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing Special Schedule No.8, the Councillors must assess the Council’s ability to continue as a
going concern except where the Council will be dissolved or amalgamated by an Act of Parliament.
The assessment must disclose, as applicable, matters related to going concern and the
appropriateness of using the going concern basis of accounting.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Special Schedule No. 8

My objectives are to:

. obtain reasonable assurance whether Special Schedule No. 8 as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
. issue an Independent Auditor’'s Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take
based on Special Schedule No.8.

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of Special Schedule No.8 is located at the Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board website at http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors _responsibilities/ar8.pdf.
The description forms part of my auditor’s report.

My opinion does not provide assurance:

. that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically

. about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited Special Schedule
No.8 on any website where they may be presented

. about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from Special Schedule No 8.

Chris Clayton

Director, Financial Audit Services

30 October 2017
SYDNEY
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